
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date & Time - Thursday, 26 May 2016 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit Committee:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), J R Astill (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, 
P C Foyster, A Harrison and M J Pullen

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Democratic Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  18 May 2016



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30.p.m 1. Apologies for absence. 

6.31.p.m. 2. Declaration of Interests - (Where a Councillor has a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor must 
declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room 
without participating in any discussion or making a 
statement on the item, except where a Councillor is 
permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation). 

6.32.p.m 3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 3 March 2016 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 1 - 
14)

6.35.p.m 4. External audit progress report and technical update - 
(report of KPMG enclosed).

(Pages 15 
- 34)

6.50.p.m 5. Annual Internal Audit Report - To provide the Committee 
with the Head of Audit’s Annual Internal Audit Report 
(report of the Audit and Risk Manager (Audit 
Lincolnshire) to follow).

7.05.p.m 6. Un-audited 2015/16 Financial Statement status - To 
present a progress report on the un-audited 2015/16 
Financial Statements to the Committee for review and 
consideration, prior to the 30 June deadline for the 
formal approval of the Accounts by the Section 151 
Officer, before audit (report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) enclosed)

(Pages 35 
- 60)

7.20.p.m 7. Local Council Tax Support Scheme - To review the 
existing Council Tax support scheme and develop a work 
plan for examination of existing and potentially new 
discounts (report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) enclosed).

(Pages 61 
- 66)

7.35.p.m 8. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment - 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) advocate that it is good practice 
for Audit Committees to undertake regular assessments, 
thus enabling members to gain an appreciation of what 
affords best practice, to confirm the level of compliance 
being achieved, and to identify any potential areas for 
enhancements to be made to arrangements (report of 
the Executive Director Commercialisation (S151 Officer) 
enclosed).

(Pages 67 
- 74)



7.45.p.m 9. Quarterly Risk Report - To inform the Committee on the 
current status of the Council’s strategic risks (report of 
the Executive Director Strategy and Governance to 
follow).

8.00.p.m 10. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - 
That the Committee gives consideration to the content of 
this report and identifies any issues for discussion (report 
of the Executive Manager Governance enclosed)

(Pages 75 
- 80)

8.05.p.m 11. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



- 34 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in 
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 3 March 2016 
at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman)
A Harrison (Vice-Chairman)

C J T H Brewis
T A Carter

P C Foyster
M J Pullen

 

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor C N Johnson 
and Julie Castledene (Principal Auditor, Lincolnshire County Council).

In Attendance:  John Cornett (Director, KPMG), Lucy Pledge (Audit and Risk 
Manager, Audit Lincolnshire) Emma Hodds (Internal Audit Consortium Manager, 
Eastern Internal Audit Services), the Interim Chief Accountant, the Change and 
Performance Manager and the Democratic Services Officer.

Action By
38. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

39. MINUTES 

The minutes of the following meetings were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record:

 Governance and Audit Committee meeting – 3 December 
2015

 Special meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee – 21 
January 2016 

40. EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2015/16 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s External Audit Plan for 
2015/16, which was presented to the Committee by the Audit 
Manager, KPMG.

The external auditor’s statutory responsibilities and powers were 
set out in the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the 
National Audit Office’s Code of Audit Practice.  

The audit had two key objectives, requiring the external auditor to 
audit/review and report on the Authority’s:

 Financial statements (including the Annual Governance 
Statement): providing an opinion on the Authority’s accounts; 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3.



- 35 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

and
 Use of resources: concluding on the arrangements in place for 

securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
Authority’s use of resources (the value for money conclusion).

Financial Statements Audit work followed a four stage audit 
process, and Appendix 1 to the report provided more detail on the 
activities that this included.  The report concentrated on the 
Financial Statements Audit Planning stage of the Financial 
Statements Audit.

Value for Money Arrangements work followed a five stage 
process.  More detail was provided within the report of what this 
included, and the report also concentrated on explaining the 
Value for Money approach for 2015/16.

The following headlines within the report were provided:

Financial Statement Audit

There were no significant changes to the Code of Practice on 
Local Authority Accounting in 2015/16, which provided stability in 
terms of the accounting standards the Authority needed to comply 
with.

Materiality – Materiality for planning purposes had been based on 
this year’s budget and was set at £600,000.  KPMG were obliged 
to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than 
those which were ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with 
governance, and this had been set at £30,000.

Significant risks – Those risks requiring specific audit attention 
and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial 
statement error had been identified as:

 Management override of controls;
 Fraudulent revenue recognition; and
 Provision for business rate appeals

Other areas of audit focus – Other areas of audit focus were 
those risks with less likelihood of giving rise to a material error but 
which were nevertheless worthy of audit understanding.  KPMG 
had not identified any such risks at this stage, but they would 
review how amendments to accounting standards affected the 
Authority and the change in the Authority’s approach to the 
minimum revenue provision.

Page 2



- 36 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

Value for Money Arrangements work

The National Audit Office (previously the Audit Commission) had 
issued new guidance for the VFM audit which applied for the 
2015/16 audit year.  The approach was broadly similar in concept 
to the previous VFM audit regime, but there were some notable 
changes:

 There was a new overall criterion on which the auditor’s VFM 
conclusion was based;

 The overall criteria was supported by three new sub-criteria.

KPMG’s risk assessment was ongoing and they would report 
VFM significant risks during their audit. 

The Committee was also advised of KPMG’s Audit fee.  Their 
Audit Fee Letter 2015/16 had been presented to the Committee in 
April 2015, and had set out fees for the 2015/16 audit.  The letter 
had also set out their assumptions.  The planned audit fee for 
2015/16 was £44,537.  This was a reduction in audit fee, 
compared to 2014/15, of £14,845 (25%).  KPMG’s audit fee 
included their work on the VFM conclusion and their audit on the 
Authority’s financial statements.

The Committee commented that the report was clear and concise, 
and that it answered any questions that they might have.

AGREED:

That the External Audit Plan 2015/16 be agreed.   

41. CERTIFICATION OF GRANTS AND RETURNS 2014/15 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s Certification of grants and 
returns 2014/15.  The report summarised the results of work they 
had carried out on the return.  This included the work they had 
completed under the Public Sector Audit Appointment certification 
arrangements, as well as the work completed on other 
grants/returns under separate engagement terms.  The work 
completed in 2014/15 was:

 Under the Public Sector Audit Appointment arrangements, 
KPMG certified one claim – the Council’s 2014/15 Housing 
Benefit Subsidy claim.  This had a value of £19.6 million.

 Under separate assurance engagements, KPMG also certified 
the Housing Pooling return.

Page 3



- 37 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

Certification results

KPMG’s work on the Authority’s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim 
was subject to a qualification letter.  As a result of issues 
identified in the previous year, and as a result of their initial work, 
it was necessary to perform:

 100% testing in relation to six specific issues where KPMG 
were able to effect claim adjustments; and

 40+ testing in relation to six further issues from which KPMG 
could not reach a conclusion as to whether the claim was fairly 
stated.

This was an increase in the amount of work from the previous 
year.

KPMG’s work on the Authority’s Housing Pooling Return resulted 
in the following reports:

 An unqualified assurance report was issued in respect of this 
return, although issues were noted in respect of:

o Previously reportable capital allowances being 
incorrectly recorded as relating to expenditure incurred 
in buying a relevant interest in a dwelling; and

o Capital receipts in respect of mortgage repayments had 
not been recorded in the appropriate quarter to which 
they related.

Cell amendments were agreed with the Council for these errors 
with neither having an effect on the amount of poolable receipts 
by the Authority.

Audit adjustments

Adjustments were necessary to both of the Authority’s grants and 
returns as a result of KPMGs certification work for the year.

 Their work on the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim resulted in a 
reduction of subsidy claimed of £2,192; and 

 Whilst their work on the Housing Pooling return did not affect 
the amount of poolable receipts, amendments of £5,771,998 
and £440 to differing cells were required.

The findings in respect of the Housing Benefit Subsidy claim were 
similar to those of the previous year whilst those in respect of the 
Housing Pooling return were new.

Page 4



- 38 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

Fees

The indicative fee for KPMG’s work on the Authority’s 2014/15 
Housing Benefit Subsidy was set by Public Sector Audit 
Appointments at £8,120.  The actual fee for this work was £9,390 
which was still subject to determination by PSAA.  KPMGs fees 
for the other ‘assurance’ engagements were subject to agreement 
directly with the Council and were £3,000.   

The Committee considered the report and the following questions 
were asked:

 With regard to fees, did a portion fall to the Housing Revenue 
Account?

o The pooling return did however, Housing Benefit fell 
to the General Fund.

 Were the errors that were identified a result of mistakes or 
non-compliance?

o They were mistakes, due to the complexity of the 
issues and some cases.

AGREED:

That the Certification of grants and returns 2014/15 be noted. 

42. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Audit & Risk 
Manager (Audit Lincolnshire), and the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which provided an update on progress with the 
Audit Plan between December 2015 to mid-February 2016.

The purpose of the report was to:

 Advise of progress being made with the 2015/16 Audit 
Plan;

 Provide details of the audit work during the period;
 Provide details of the current position with agreed 

management actions in respect of previously issued 
reports; and

 Update the committee on any changes to the 2015/16 
Audit Plan and any other matters that may be relevant to 
the Governance and Audit Committee role.

Contained within the appendices which were attached to the 
report was detailed information in relation to Assurance 
Definitions (Appendix 1); Audits with Limited Assurance 
(Appendix 2); and the Internal Audit Plan and Schedule (Appendix 

Page 5



- 39 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

3).

As detailed within the report, all work was planned for completion 
by the end of March 2016.  The Audit and Risk Manager (Audit 
Lincolnshire) confirmed that internal audit services for South 
Holland District Council would be provided by  Eastern Internal 
Audit Services from 1 April 2016, and that she would be meeting 
with the Executive Director Commercialisation next week to 
consider handover of the new audit plan. 

The Committee was also advised that within the report at section 
1.13, the implementation date under ICT Strategy and Projects 
should be 31 March 2016, not 31 June 2015 as stated.

Members considered the information detailed within the report, 
and the following issues were raised:

 Section 1.13 (Follow Up on Outstanding Audit 
Recommendations) – The recommendation for Mobile Devices 
had a completion date of 29 February 2016. Had this been 
completed?

o A follow-up had been undertaken mid-February and 
this was currently the most up to date position.  The 
status would be ascertained and fed back to 
Committee members.

 Limited assurance had been provided in relation to the ICT 
Software and ICT Strategy and Projects audit. Could the 
internal auditors explain this?

o The Audit and Risk Manager advised that Appendix 
2 provided a fuller explanation of the background to 
the limited assurance provided to ICT Strategy and 
Projects, and the actions required.  She advised that 
if the Committee wanted an update on progress with 
these, that the ICT Director (CPBS) would be able to 
provide this information.

o The Chief Accountant commented that there were 
management actions outside of ICT that would have 
impact on this area.

 Had lessons been learned from the recent ICT security breach 
at Lincolnshire County Council?

o The Audit and Risk Manager advised that lessons 
had been learned, that there had been a de-brief 
following the incident, and that a more formal de-
briefing session would be held at the end of March.  
She advised that she would share information on 
cypber-risks with the Internal Audit Consortium 
Manager.

Page 6



- 40 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

o The Audit and Risk Manager also commented that 
the limited assurance opinion for the two ICT reports 
showed that improvement was required in the 
governance of ICT by CPBS.  The Committee may 
require further assistance in monitoring this.  
Information was being shared to try and prevent 
these cyber attacks happening in the future.  She 
also stated that IT Security should be featuring on 
all Corporate Risk Registers

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That the Committee be advised of whether the completion 
date of 29 February 2016, for the outstanding audit 
recommendation regarding Mobile Devices, had been met. 

c) That the ICT Director (CPBS) provide the Committee with an 
update on progress with outstanding actions relating to the 
ICT Software and the ICT Strategy and Projects audits, which 
had received a limited assurance opinion; and

d) That the Audit and Risk Manager (Lincolnshire Audit) share 
information on cyber-risks with the new internal audit provider.

(The Audit and Risk Manager (Lincolnshire Audit) left the meeting 
following discussion of the above item). 

CM 

CM 

CM 

43. STRATEGIC AND ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLANS 2016/17 

Consideration was given to the report of the Internal Audit 
Consortium Manager who provided information on the Strategic 
and Annual Internal Audit Plans 2016/17.  The purpose of the 
report was to provide an overview of the stages followed prior to 
the formulation of the Strategic Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17 to 
2018/19 and the Annual Internal Audit Plan for 2016/17.  The 
Annual Internal Audit Plan would then serve as the work 
programme for the Council’s Internal Audit Services Contractor, 
TIAA Ltd.  It would also provide the basis for the Annual Audit 
Opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of South 
Holland District Council’s framework of governance, risk 
management and control.

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 required that ‘a 
relevant authority must undertake an effective internal audit to 
evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management, control and 
governance processes, taking into account public sector internal 
auditing standards or guidance’.  These standards were set out in 

Page 7



- 41 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) which came 
into effect in April 2013.

The appendix attached to the report contained;

 The Internal Audit Charter which formally defined the internal 
audit’s purpose, authority and responsibility, and was a 
mandatory document.  The charter also displayed formal 
commitment to the definition of internal auditing, the code of 
ethics and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards;

 The Internal Audit Strategy, which was a strategic high level 
statement on how the internal audit service would be delivered 
and developed in accordance with the charter and how it 
linked to the organisational objectives and priorities;

 The Strategic Internal Audit Plan, which detailed the plan of 
work for the next 3 financial years;

 The Annual Internal Audit Plan, which detailed the timing and 
the purpose of each audit agreed for inclusion in 2016/17; and

 Provided the Committee with the performance measures 
against which the new contractor would be monitored.

The Committee considered the report, and the following issues 
were raised:

 It was noted that East Lindsey District Council’s audit team 
had previously audited CPBS for both South Holland District 
Council and East Lindsey District Council.

o The Internal Audit Consortium Manager advised that 
this was the case, and that reliance would be placed 
on this.  There would be a continuation of the 
current arrangements.

 Why did East Lindsey District Council audit CPBS?
o It was ascertained that this arrangement was 

historic as East Lindsey District Council were 
majority owners of CPBS i.e.there was a 60/40 split.  
For the first year of the new audit arrangements, this 
would continue however after this, the arrangements 
would be looked into.

 The Committee acknowledged that the arrangement would 
continue for the first year, but it would monitor the situation.

o The Internal Audit Consortium Manager advised that 
when a progress report was due, she would ask that 
the Head of East Lindsey’s Internal Audit section 
attend the meeting.  

Page 8



- 42 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; 

b) That the Committee approve:

 The Internal Audit Charter for 2016/17;
 The Internal Audit Strategy for 2016/17;
 The Strategic Internal Audit Plans 2016/17 to 2018/18; and
 The Annual Internal Audit Plan 2016/17; and

c) That the Internal Audit Consortium Manager request the Head 
of East Lindsey’s Internal Audit section to attend the next 
meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee when a 
progress report was due. 

CM 

44. AUDIT MANDATORY INQUIRIES 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation which asked members to confirm the response 
to the external audit mandatory enquiries.

In order to comply with a number of International Standards of 
Auditing, external auditors were required to obtain an 
understanding on how those charged with governance exercised 
oversight of management’s process in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concern.  To assist this work, which formed 
part of the annual audit, the external auditor issued a number of 
questions to those charged with governance.  This year’s focus 
was on fraud and significant unusual transactions.

Appendix A set out the enquires to those charged with 
governance.  It had been pre-populated to a large extent, where 
possible, following discussion between the Section 151 Officer 
and Internal Audit.  However, one question on fraud asked for an 
opinion and it was therefore felt inappropriate to pre-empt the 
Committee’s response.

Members were asked to consider these responses and to be 
satisfied that they corresponded to the Committee’s own view of 
affairs, or whether the responses required modification.

The Committee considered the report and agreed that they were 
happy with the responses .  

AGREED:

That the response to the external audit mandatory inquiries be 
approved. 

Page 9



- 43 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

45. COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT ANTI-FRAUD POLICY 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Commercialisation (S151 Officer) which provided information on 
the anti-fraud policy in relation to the Council Tax Support 
scheme.

Council Tax Support replaced the national Council Tax Benefit 
system in April 2013 under the Welfare Reform Act 2012, and 
local authorities were required to have in place a locally 
determined scheme for working age residents.

It was a legislative requirement that those who received state 
pension would continue to receive support under the Council Tax 
Support Scheme on the same terms as would have applied under 
the old Council Tax Benefit scheme.

Activities outlined in the policy were carried out in practice by 
trained and experienced officers, with compliance to relevant 
legislation and governance.  To ensure transparency, and to act 
as a deterrent, the process had been brought together in a 
Council Tax Support Anti-Fraud Policy.  This was attached as 
Appendix A to the report.  

The Committee was advised that this was a relatively new 
situation for the Council, and the Authority would have to look at 
what it spent on Council Tax Support.  The cost of the scheme 
had to be examined, and the overall policy reassessed.  

The Chief Accountant advised that officers were looking at 
identifying areas of discount that were discretionary, and that 
levels had to be set.  He stated that information regarding this 
would be presented to the Committee in the future so that it could 
provide input.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That information on the setting of levels of discount that was 
discretionary would be presented to the Committee for 
consideration in due course. 

SH, KT 

46. QUARTERLY RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director 
Strategy and Governance, which updated the Committee on the 
current status of the Authority’s strategic risks. 

Page 10



- 44 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was 
in December 2015.  Since then, work had continued on 
configuring the new corporate performance and risk monitoring 
system, Covalent.  The report had been generated using the new 
system and included updates on strategic risks for quarter 3, 
2015/16.  Changes had been made to the layout of the report 
including the addition of the original risk score and details of the 
controls/mitigation in place.

Strategic risks were captured on the Corporate Dashboard, 
reviewed by Executive Management Team quarterly.  In addition, 
risks were reviewed monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk 
and Audit Board, chaired by the Executive Director of Strategy 
and Governance.

Strategic risks had been reviewed and updated with responsible 
members of the Executive Management Team (EMT).  The 
strategic risk register included twelve strategic risks (detailed at 
Appendix A to the report).  These covered the over-arching risks 
that may affect the strategic direction of the Council, rather than 
risks linked to business continuity or those that affected discreet 
service areas.

Following recent high profile media coverage regarding the ICT 
breach at Lincolnshire County Council, a strategic risk had been 
developed relating to the security of ICT at South Holland.  The 
severity of an attack on the ICT, and the resulting shut down in 
order to avoid breaches of data, had meant that the risk was 
currently scored as a high risk after controls and mitigation.  This 
would continue to be monitored.

Strategic risks typically affected the whole of the organisation and 
not just one or more parts of it.  Strategic risks could potentially 
involve very high stakes and often affect the ability of the 
organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of the Council to 
achieve its corporate plan objectives and purpose.  Strategic risks 
were managed at Board (EMT) level.

The Risk Framework was currently under review, alongside the 
implementation of the new ICT system.  As part of the Risk 
Framework review, the procedure in which an operational risk 
became a strategic risk had been considered.  It was 
recommended that operational risks continue to be monitored 
monthly as part of the Performance, Risk and Audit Board and 
where a risk remained at a score of fifteen for a period of more 
than one quarter after controls and mitigation had been put in 
place, this risk would then be considered a strategic risk and 
therefore be reported to the Governance and Audit Committee.

Page 11



- 45 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

As a result of the Risk Framework review, the risk matrix had 
been changed from a  3 x 3 to a 5 x 5 matrix, based on best 
practice in comparable organisations.  This provided a more 
comprehensive assessment and understanding of risk likelihood 
and impact.  The matrix resulted in a numerical score which 
combined the impact of the risk occurring with the likelihood of it 
happening.   Risks fell into High, Medium or Low categories 
depending on their rating.

The Committee considered the report, and the following question 
was asked:

 Staff recruitment and retention at all levels within the 
organisation – Improvement in this area had been seen.  What 
was the reason for this improvement?

o The Committee was advised that this reflected a 
reduction in likelihood rather than impact.  The context 
for this reduced risk would be ascertained and fed back 
to Committee members.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That the context for the reduction in risk for ‘Staff recruitment 
and retention at all levels within the organisation’ be 
ascertained and fed back to the Committee. 

TR 

47. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
          PROGRAMME 

Consideration was given to the report of the Democratic Services 
and Legal Manager, which presented the Work Programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.

The schedule of meetings for 2016/17 was now available, and 
dates for Governance and Audit meetings had been added to the 
Work Programme.  Regular items had been transferred from the 
2015/16 municipal year to the appropriate meeting dates for the 
new municipal year.  Contributors were requested to confirm that 
the reports, and the meeting dates on which they were to be 
reported, were correct.

The Committee considered the report and the Work Programme 
for the forthcoming year and agreed all items on it were correct.

The external auditor advised that at meetings where no full 

Page 12



- 46 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 3 March 2016

reports were being presented to the Committee, progress reports 
would be provided.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted;

b) That progress reports from the external auditor be added to 
the Work Programme to meetings where no full report was 
being presented. 

CM 

(The meeting ended at 8.20 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



External audit 
progress report and 
technical update
South Holland District Council        

May 2016

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4.



Progress report

P
age 16



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

External audit progress report – May 2016
This document provides 
the Governance and 
Audit Committee with a 
high level overview on 
our external audit.

At the end of each stage 
of the audit we issue 
certain deliverables, 
including reports and 
opinions. A summary of 
progress against these 
deliverables is provided 
in Appendix 1 of this 
report. 

Since the last meeting of the Governance and Audit Committee we have updated our risk assessments and undertaken 
our interim audit. We will continue to liaise with management on the significant financial and operational issues at the 
Authority and relevant current and emerging issues in respect of the accounts and value for money conclusion. 

Accounts Audit

We undertook our interim audit work during April 2016. The planned audit work has included:

• Updating our understanding and performing walk through and controls testing on key financial systems;

• Testing of controls for significant accounts;

• Determining our approach for data and analytics testing;

• Discussing the accounting requirements for 2015/16, including relevant changes to the CIPFA guidance; and

• Discussing with management the general proposals for the closure of accounts process and our working paper 
requirements.

Value for Money Conclusion
We have carried out an initial risk assessment against the new criterion specified by the National Audit Office for 
2015/16 onwards. 

Our risk assessment is ongoing and the focus of our work will be around your Medium Term Financial Planning 
arrangements. We will update our risk assessment during the year and report our conclusions in the ISA260 report to 
the Governance and Audit Committee in September 2016.

P
age 17



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

External audit progress report - May 2016
Local Government Technical Update – February 2016

We once again ran a series of local government accounts workshops for key members of our clients’ finance teams.
The workshops were focussed at Chief Accountants and similar staff who will be involved in and responsible for the
2015/16 close down and statement of accounts. The workshops were led by our regional local government audit
teams supported by our national local government technical lead Greg McIntosh. Representatives from your finance
team attended one of the events. The agenda included:

• Review of 2014/15;

• Key Issues and developments for 2015/16 and Longer term developments; and

• Tax and Pensions specialists.

Early Accounts Closure Workshop – March 2016

We held a workshop for our local Government clients  to help them as part of their planning for the bringing forward of 
the accounts closure deadline for the 2017/18 Accounts. We will ensure that members of your finance team are 
provided with copies of the course materials and outputs. The workshop agenda covered:

• Background to the changes and the new statutory requirements;

• Presentation by practitioners from a County Council and District Council who had already successfully brought 
forward their closure dates;

• An interactive session to identify the barriers to early closure and the possible solutions;

• Further insights on the arrangements for early closure in 2014/15 at Oldham and Westminster Councils; and

• The audit requirements.

We have held two 
workshops aimed at 
improving the accounts 
production and audit 
process.

P
age 18



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

External audit progress report - May 2016
Audit fee update and 
other work

Actions

Contacts

At this stage there are no changes planned to the scale audit fee of £44,537 communicated to the Authority in April
2015 and in our February 2016 Audit Plan.

No other audit related or non-audit work is in progress or planned for 2015/16.

We ask the Governance and Audit Committee to:

 NOTE this progress report

John Cornett, Director
john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes, Manager
helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej, Assistant Manager
jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

P
age 19

mailto:john.Cornett@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:Helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:Jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk


Technical update

P
age 20



7

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

New local audit framework

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 included transitional arrangements covering the audit contracts originally let by the 
Audit Commission in 2012 and 2014. These contracts covered the audit of accounts up to 2016/17, and gave the Department for 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) the power to extend these contracts to 2019/20.

DCLG have now announced that the audit contracts for large local government bodies (including district, unitary and county 
councils, police and fire bodies, transport bodies, combined authorities and national parks) will be extended to include the audit of 
the 2017/18 financial statements. From 2018/19, local government bodies will need to appoint their own auditors; it is not yet clear 
whether there will be a sector-led body that is able to undertake this role on behalf of bodies.

CIPFA have now issued guidance that was commissioned by DCLG on the creation of Auditor Panels. The guidance is available at 
www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf The guidance provides options on establishing an 
Auditor Panel, and the roles and responsibilities the panels will have once established.

NHS and smaller local government bodies (town and parish councils, and internal drainage boards), will not have their contracts 
extended, and will have to appoint their own auditors for 2017/18, one year earlier than for larger local government bodies.

Members may wish to review the CIPFA 
guidance and begin initial discussions with 
colleagues about the approach the Authority 
may wish to adopt.

P
age 21

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/g/guide-to-auditor-panels-pdf


8

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

DCLG consultation on pension fund investment reform

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has recently closed a consultation on revised regulations for the 
investment of local government pension scheme assets. The proposed regulations include the proposal to allow pension schemes to 
pool assets for investment purposes.

The revised regulations can be found here at www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-pension-scheme-investment-
reform-criteria-and-guidance

The outcome of the consultation will be published here: https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/revoking-and-replacing-the-
local-government-pension-scheme

The Committee may wish to enquire of 
officers whether their Authority responded to 
the consultation and the views expressed.

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 – Exercise of public rights 

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

Authorities will be aware that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (the Regulations) set out new arrangements for the exercise 
of public rights from 2015/16 onwards.

Paragraph 9(1) of the Regulations requires the responsible financial officer to commence the period for the exercise of public rights 
and to notify the local auditor of the date on which that period was commenced.

Paragraph 9(2) is clear that the final approval of the statement of accounts by the authority prior to publication cannot take place 
until after the conclusion of the period for the exercise of public rights.

As the thirty working day period for the exercise of public rights must include the first ten working days of July, this means that 
authorities will not be able to approve their audited accounts or publish before 15 July 2016.

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances that the necessary arrangements 
are in in place for their Authority. 

P
age 22

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/local-government-pension-scheme-investment-reform-criteria-and-guidance
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/revoking-and-replacing-the-local-government-pension-scheme


9

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 – Narrative statements 

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

Authorities will need to be aware that the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require local authorities to produce and publish a 
narrative statement. Section 8 of the Regulations, which apply first from the 2015/16 financial year, states:

Narrative statements

A Category 1 authority must prepare a narrative statement in accordance with paragraph (2) in respect of each financial year.

A narrative statement prepared under paragraph (1) must include comment by the authority on its financial performance and 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources over the financial year.

Authorities will need to publish the narrative statement along with the financial statements. The narrative statement does not form 
part of the financial statements and is therefore not subject to audit. As part of their audit work however, auditors will need to review 
the statement for consistency with their knowledge.

The narrative statement replaces the explanatory foreword and will need to be prepared in accordance with CIPFA/LASAAC’s Code
of Practice on Local Authority Accounting (the accounting code). The 2016/17 accounting code will contain high level principles for 
authorities to follow when preparing their narrative statements. The principles set out in the accounting code will also be relevant to 
2015/16 and we understand that CIPFA/LASAAC is likely to publish an update to the 2015/16 accounting code to clarify this.

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances that their Authority has 
arrangements in place to meet the new 
requirements.

P
age 23



10

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

Consultation on 2016/17 audit work programme and scales of fees

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) published its consultation on the 2016/17 proposed work programme and scales of 
fees.

The consultation set out the work that auditors will undertake at principal audited bodies for 2016/17, with the associated scales of 
fees. The consultation documents, and list of individual proposed scale fees, are available on the PSAA website at 
www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/consultation-on-201617-proposed-fee-scales/

There are no planned changes to the overall work programme for 2016/17. It is proposed that scale fees are set at the same level
as the scale fees applicable for 2015/16, set by the Audit Commission before it closed in March 2015. The Commission reduced 
scale fees from 2015/16 by 25 per cent, in addition to the reduction of up to 40 per cent made from 2012/13.

Following completion of the Audit Commission’s 2014/15 accounts, PSAA has received a payment in respect of the Audit 
Commission’s retained earnings.

PSAA will redistribute this and any other surpluses from audit fees to audited bodies, on a timetable to be established shortly.

The work that auditors will carry out on the 2016/17 accounts will be completed based on the requirements set out in the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014 and under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office.

The consultation closed on Friday 15 January 2016. PSAA will publish the final work programme and scales of fees for 2016/17 in 
March 2016.

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances on how their Authority have 
responded to the consultation. 

P
age 24

http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-and-certification-fees/consultation-on-201617-proposed-fee-scales/


11

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

CIPFA briefings on accounting for highways infrastructure assets

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

CIPFA has published the first of a series of briefings on highways infrastructure assets.

The first briefing focuses on the decisions made by CIPFA/LASAAC Local Authority Accounting Board following its consultation on 
the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2016/17. The briefing also covers the applicability of the 
measurement requirements for district councils and the resources available to support the implementation process. In particular the 
briefing notes:

■ the change to recognising the assets using the depreciated replacement cost approach will be prospective, so will not require
the 2015/16 accounts to be restated; and

■ district councils are unlikely to meet the definition of having a single highways network asset, although they will need to reach 
their own view on this. 

The first briefing can be found at 
www.cipfa.org/~/media/files/policy%20and%20guidance/local%20authority%20transport%20infrastructure/final%20briefing%20hna
%20no%201.pdf?la=en

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances how their Authority is 
progressing with the new requirements.

P
age 25

http://www.cipfa.org/%7E/media/files/policy%20and%20guidance/local%20authority%20transport%20infrastructure/final%20briefing%20hna%20no%201.pdf?la=en


12

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

2015/16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) – update

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

CIPFA/LASAAC has issued an update to the 2015/16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom (the 
Code) following its consultation process. The 2015/16 Code update should be read alongside the 2015/16 Code published in April 
2015.

Authorities should note that the update confirms the transitional reporting requirements for the measurement of the Highways 
Network Asset. The Code does not require a change to the preceding year information for the move to measuring the Highways 
Network Asset at current value (and under that provision would not require a change to the balance sheet information at 1 April 
2015). It also does not require a restatement of the opening 1 April 2016 information but there will need to be an adjustment to those 
balances.

The Code update also includes amendments as a result of legislative changes and particularly the Accounts and Audit Regulations 
2015 for English authorities. It specifies the principles for narrative reporting which CIPFA/LASAAC considers should be used to
meet the new requirements of those regulations.

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances that their Authority is aware of 
the update to the 2015/16 Code.

Better Care Fund policy framework 2016/17 

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

The Department of Health, in conjunction with the Department for Communities and Local Government, has recently published 
2016-17 Better Care Fund planning guidance.

The guidance introduces a number of changes, requiring local clinical commissioning groups (CCGs), councils and providers to 
establish risk sharing arrangements to fund unplanned emergency admissions. Local areas will also have to agree to ‘stretching’ 
local targets for cutting delayed transfers of care supported by an action plan.

The guidance can be found here: www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-how-it-will-work-in-2016-to-2017

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances how their Authority is developing 
these arrangements.

P
age 26

http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/better-care-fund-how-it-will-work-in-2016-to-2017


13

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

Capital receipts flexibility 

Level of impact  KPMG perspective

The 2015 Spending Review included an announcement that local authorities would be able to use capital receipts on the revenue
costs of service reform projects. The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has now issued guidance on the 
capital receipts flexibility, including a draft direction setting out the types of project that would qualify and expected governance and 
transparency framework. In summary:

■ the flexibility is available from 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2019;

■ only capital receipts generated during that period can be used for the flexibility;

■ the Secretary of State’s direction will have the effect of allowing authorities to treat revenue expenditure on service reform as 
capital during the three year period;

■ authorities will not be allowed to borrow to fund revenue expenditure on service reform; and

■ authorities are required to have regard to a statutory code which contains certain transparency requirements when taking 
advantage of the flexibility.

We understand that DCLG’s aim is that the final signed direction will be issued with the final settlement in February 2016.

A copy of the draft guidance can be found at 
www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/486999/Capital_receipts_flexibility_-
_draft_statutory_guidance_and_direction.pdf

The Committee may wish to seek 
assurances how their Authority is planning to 
use the new flexibility.

P
age 27

http://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/486999/Capital_receipts_flexibility_-_draft_statutory_guidance_and_direction.pdf


14

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update
PSAA update – VFM profiles March 2016 release 

Level of impact  (for information) 

Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) updated its Value for Money Profiles Tool (VFM profiles) on 3 February 2016.

The VFM profiles have been updated with the 2014-15 data sourced from the Department for Communities and Local Government – General Fund Revenue Outturn Budget (RO). 
The values are adjusted with gross domestic product (GDP) deflators from HM Treasury's publication in November 2015. The profiles can be accessed through the PSAA website 
at www.psaa.co.uk/

Joint report by CIPFA and HFMA: The Better Care Fund – six months on 

Level of impact  (for information) 

Authorities may wish to be aware of a recent joint report by CIPFA and the Healthcare Financial Management Association (HFMA) examining the progress that has been made six 
months into the implementation of Better Care Fund arrangements. 

The report is based on the results of an HFMA and CIPFA joint finance staff survey of NHS bodies and local authorities representing almost a third of BCF sites.

The report can be found on the CIPFA website at www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/better-care-fund-struggling-with-red-tape

Proposed changes to business rates and core grant

Level of impact  (for information) 

This report has been published by the National Audit Office and complements its earlier report on central government’s approach to the Care Act first-phase reforms. 

This further report provides examples from local case study areas which show how different authorities are addressing risks arising from uncertainty in demand from carers and self-
funders.

The report was published on 3 August and is available from the NAO website at www.nao.org.uk/report/care-act-first-phase-reforms-local-experience-of-implementation/

P
age 28

http://www.psaa.co.uk/
http://www.cipfa.org/about-cipfa/press-office/latest-press-releases/better-care-fund-struggling-with-red-tape
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/care-act-first-phase-reforms-local-experience-of-implementation/


15

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

The LGA’s 2015 Spending Review submission

Level of impact  (for information) 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) has pioneered the concept of local devolution within England. ‘Devo Manc” encompasses a broad range of proposals to address 
the challenges and opportunities GM is facing:

Health and Social Care

Greater Manchester is facing an estimated financial deficit of c. £2 billion by 2020/21. A Memorandum of Understanding was signed in February 2015 between all partners in GM, 
committing the region to produce a comprehensive Strategic and sustainable Plan for health and social care.

As part of the Plan, GM is seeking to use its share of the £8 billion promised to the NHS in the CSR to support new recurrent costs and protect social care budgets, closing over a 
quarter of the funding gap. A further investment by the partners of £500 million, phased over three years, will release future recurrent savings with a likely payback of £3 for every 
£1 invested.

GM proposals

In addition, GM has made a number of proposals to reform the way public services work together and deliver services within the region:

All of these proposals involve joint working, not just with other GM agencies, but also central government departments. This allows the existing financial resources provided to the 
region to be redeployed more efficiently to maximise the benefits to GM.

■ Investment in transport infrastructure ■ Research and innovation funding

■ New funding mechanisms to support site remediation and 
infrastructure provision

■ Investment in integrated business support to drive growth and 
productivity

■ Making better use of Social Housing Assets to support growth ■ Reform of the New Homes Bonus

■ Locally led low carbon ■ Further employment and skills reform

■ A scaled-up GM Reform Investment Fund ■ GM approach to data sharing across public agencies

■ Devolution of decision making for apprenticeships and training, and 
reform to careers advice and guidance

■ Fiscal devolution, including reform to Business Rates, Council Tax, 
Stamp Duty Land Tax and a Hotel Bed Tax

■ Fundamental review of the way services to children are delivered

P
age 29



16

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Local Government External Audit

Technical update

The LGA’s 2015 Spending Review submission

Level of impact  (for information) 

The Chancellor of the Exchequer has proposed some radical reforms of local government finance. The proposals are that by the end of the decade, councils will retain all locally 
raised business rates but will cease to receive core grant from Whitehall.

The Chancellor set out the landmark changes in a speech to the Conservative party conference in Manchester, saying it was time to face up to the fact that “the way this country is 
run is broken”.

Under the proposals, authorities will be able to keep all the business rates that they collect from local businesses, meaning that power over £26 billion of revenue from business 
rates will be devolved, he said

The uniform national business rate will be abolished, although only to allow all authorities the power to cut rates. Cities that choose to move to systems of combined authorities with 
directly elected city wide mayors will be able to increase rates for specific major infrastructure projects, up to a cap, likely to be set at £0.02 on the rate. 

The system of tariffs and top-ups designed to support areas with lower levels of business activity will be maintained in its present state.

Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 

Level of impact  (for information) 

Authorities will wish to note that the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 2016 received Royal Assent on 28 January 2016. The Act provides the enabling legislation to:

■ allow for the election of mayors for a combined authority area;

■ allow for the devolution of functions, including transport, health, skills, planning and job support; and

■ provide a power to establish sub-national transport bodies which will advise the Government on strategic schemes and investment priorities in their own area.

Most of the changes under the Act, including the implementation of ‘devolution’ deals, will be implemented by Orders to be made under the Act.

P
age 30



Appendix 1 
Audit deliverablesP

age 31



18

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative 
(“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

Deliverable Purpose Timing Status

Planning

Fee letter Communicate indicative fee for the audit year April 2015 Done

External audit plan Outline our audit strategy and planned approach 

Identify areas of audit focus and planned

procedures

February 2016 Done

Interim

Interim report Details and resolution of control and process issues.

Identify improvements required prior to the issue of the draft financial statements and the year-end audit.

Initial VFM assessment on the Council's arrangements for securing value for money in the use of its resources.

If Required N/A

Substantive procedures

Report to those charged 
with governance (ISA 260
report)

Details the resolution of key audit issues.

Communication of adjusted and unadjusted audit differences. 

Performance improvement recommendations identified during our

audit. Commentary on the Council’s value for money arrangements.

September 2016 TBC

Completion

Auditor’s report Providing an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the VFM 
conclusion).

September 2016 TBC

WGA Concluding on the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack in accordance with guidance issued by the National Audit Office. September 2016 TBC

Annual Audit Letter Summarise the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. September 2016 TBC

Certification of claims and returns

Certification of claims 
and returns report

Summarise the outcomes of certification work on your claims and returns for Government departments. February 2017 TBC

Audit deliverables

P
age 32



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent 
member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights 
reserved.
The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International.
The information contained herein is of a general nature and is not intended to address the circumstances of any 
particular individual or entity. Although we endeavor to provide accurate and timely information, there can be 
no guarantee that such information is accurate as of the date it is received or that it will continue to be accurate 
in the future. No one should act on such information without appropriate professional advice after a thorough 
examination of the particular situation.

kpmg.com/socialmedia kpmg.com/appP
age 33

http://kpmg.com/socialmedia
http://kpmg.com/socialmedia


T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Commercialisation (s151 Officer)

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 26 May 2016

Author: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Subject: Un-audited 2015/16 Financial statements status.

Purpose: To present a progress report on the un-audited 2015/16 Financial 
Statements to the Committee for review and consideration, prior to the 30 
June deadline for the formal approval of the Accounts by the Section 151 
Officer, before audit.

Recommendation: 

1) That as part of its governance role, the Committee considers the Un-audited 2015/16 main 
financial statements.
 

2) The committee notes that full statements are currently work in progress.

3) The Committee notes that the Section 151 Officer will make any necessary amendments prior 
to the formal approval of the statements for audit and any substantial changes will be reported 
to committee in July 2016.

4) The committee notes the Executive Management Team will approve the Annual Governance 
Statement and will make comments as necessary within the appropriate timeframe.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Accounts and Audit regulations 2015 require that the Responsible Financial Officer 
signs the un-audited statement of accounts no later than 30 June each year; and the 
statement of accounts be considered and approved by a committee of the Council no later 
than 30 September each year.

1.2 As part of the Governance role and in line with good practice, this report presents the un-
audited financial statements to the Committee to enable comments and challenge, and to 
highlight any key areas.

1.3 The Financial Statements  production process is in progress and draft statements will be 
completed by the end of May 2016, and included in Appendix A are  the Un-audited 
versions of the 2015/16 main Statements (The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 
Statement, the Movement in Reserves Statement, Cash Flow Statement and Balance 
Sheet as at 31 March 2016).

1.4 The attached Accounts are complete but are subject to checks to ensure that they fully 
comply with disclosure requirements which will continue up the 30 June statutory deadline, 
when the Accounts are signed by the Section 151 Officer and then passed for Audit. Any 
significant changes identified between the sending out of this report and the Un-audited 
accounts published at the end of June 2016 will be reported to committee in July 2016.

1.5 The accounts are prepared with reference to the accounting code of Practice for 2015/16 
and Appendix B highlights the main changes from the previous years.

1.6 A draft version of the Annual Governance statement is attached for information and 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6.



comment. The final document will be published on the web site on 1 July 2016 alongside 
the un-audited accounts.

1.7 A training session on annual accounts and the difference to management accounts will be 
given in a pre-meeting session before the July meeting.

1.8 The Draft Annual Governance statement is attached for comment. The draft statement will 
be issued to the Executive Management Team for approval on 23 May 2016. The final 
document will be approved by 30 June 2016 in line with the un-audited accounts as both 
documents need to be published on the web site on 1 July 2016 for a minimum of 20 
working days public consultation. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note the report and the pre-audit financial statements.

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The report and appendix are for information and consultation; no approvals are required at 
this stage.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Audit Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they 
are proactive in financial management matters of the Authority.

4.2 To enable any key issues to be discussed and clarified as necessary

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial

5.1.1 Regular monitoring reports are issued to Cabinet on financial performance to budget. 
Appendix C highlights the end of year position and compares it to the forecast issued in 
February 2016 based on Quarter 3 (Sept to Dec 2015) data.

5.1.2 The comprehensive income and expenditure account is prepared on a different basis to the 
monitoring reports and includes mandatory technical adjustments. As an example Planning 
services expenditure in year includes approx. £600k in respect of Broadband Lincolnshire 
and £350k in respect of Grants for Growth. These projects are included in the Capital 
programme but as there is no SHDC asset realised as part of the project all costs are 
transferred to the Income & Expenditure account. The technical adjustment is REFFCUS 
which is revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute.   

5.1.3 Net income for the year is £11.4 m and this includes £8.1 m of adjustments in respect of 
Pension fund liabilities (£5.6m) and revaluation of assets (£2.5m).   

5.1.4 Usable reserves position is examined in more detail in Appendix C.

5.1.5 The Balance Sheet shows an £11.3m improvement from last year and this comprises; 
£3.5m of revaluation gains on assets, £4.4m improvement in current assets (including 
£3.7m improvement in cash & investments), £4.3m improvement in long term liabilities 
which reflects the pension fund adjustment offset by (£0.9m) timing on current liabilities.

5.1.6 The cash flow statement excludes funds invested with counter parties in line with the 

Page 36



Treasury management policy.
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 IFRS - International Financial Reporting Standard
7.2 CPBS – Compass Point Business Services
7.3 IAS – International Accounting Standard
7.4 CIPFA – The Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 
7.5 LASAAC - Local Authority (Scotland) Accounts Advisory Committee

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Julie Kennealy Executive Director Commercialisation Section151
Telephone Number: 01775 761161
Email: Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk or alternatively 

ktrotter@sholland.gov.uk (Interim Chief Accountant)

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A 
Appendix B

Appendix C
Appendix D

Statements of Account 2015/16
2015/16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the 
United Kingdom
Management Accounts out turn to Budget
Draft Annual Governance Statement

Page 37

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AND EXPENDITURE STATEMENT                                  APPENDIX A

2014/15 2015/16

Gross 
Expenditure

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expenditure 

of 
Continuing 
Operations 

Gross 
Expenditure

Gross 
Income

Net 
Expenditure 

of 
Continuing 
Operations 

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,510 (860) 650 Central services to the public 1,652 (868) 784
2,762 (883) 1,879 Cultural and related services 2,647 (843) 1,804
4,511 (1,267) 3,244 Environmental and regulatory services 4,868 (798) 4,070
3,151 (1,842) 1,309 Planning services 3,962 (1,718) 2,244

258 (295) (37) Highways and transport services 260 (304) (44)
9,461 (16,842) (7,381) Local authority housing (HRA) 9,096 (16,816) (7,720)

21,739 (20,861) 878 Other housing services 20,832 (20,696) 136
2,438 (257) 2,181 Corporate and democratic core 2,577 (408) 2,169

85 - 85 Non distributed costs 3 - 3
45,915 (43,107) 2,808 Cost of Services 45,897 (42,451) 3,446

4,032 (1,057) 2,975 Other operating expenditure (Note 8) 4,389 (1,404) 2,985
5,554 (2,183) 3,371 Financing and investment income and expenditure (Note 9) 5,117 (1,975) 3,142
6,877 (20,499) (13,622) Taxation and non-specific grant income and expenditure (Note 10) 7,221 (20,093) (12,872)

62,378 (66,846) (4,468) Surplus on the Provision of Services 62,624 (65,882) (3,299)

(1,930) Surplus on revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment assets (2,473)
3,690 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (5,606)

1,760 Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (8,079)

(2,708) Total Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (11,378)

P
age 39



MOVEMENT IN RESERVES STATEMENT 

2015/16

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d 
B

al
an

ce

Ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
G

en
er

al
 F

un
d 

R
es

er
ve

s

H
ou

si
ng

 
R

ev
en

ue
 

A
cc

ou
nt

Ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
H

R
A

 R
es

er
ve

s

M
aj

or
 

R
ep

ai
rs

 
R

es
er

ve

C
ap

ita
l 

R
ec

ei
pt

s 
R

es
er

ve

C
ap

ita
l G

ra
nt

s 
U

na
pp

lie
d

To
ta

l U
sa

bl
e 

R
es

er
ve

s

U
nu

sa
bl

e 
R

es
er

ve
s

To
ta

l A
ut

ho
rit

y 
R

es
er

ve
s

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 31 March 2015 2,055 9,274 8,968 200 - 1,907 1,522 23,926 36,554 60,480

Movement in reserves during 
2015/16
Surplus or (deficit) on the provision 
of services (1,895) - 5,194 - - - - 3,299 - 3,299
Other Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure - - - - - - - - 8,079 8,079
Total Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure (1,895) - 5,194 - - - - 3,299 8,079 11,378

Adjustments between accounting 
basis and funding basis under 
regulations (Note 6) 108 - (5,194) - 2,609 672 166 (1,639) 1,639 -
Net Increase or Decrease before 
Transfers to Earmarked Reseves (1,787) - - - 2,609 672 166 1,660 9,718 11,378

Transfers (to)/from Earmarked 
Reserves (Note 7) 1,833 (1,833) - - - - - - - -

Increase/(Decrease) in 2015/16 46 (1,833) - - 2,609 672 166 1,660 9,718 11,378

Balance at 31 March 2016 carried 
forward 2,101 7,441 8,968 200 2,609 2,579 1,688 25,586 46,272 71,858

P
age 40



BALANCE SHEET

31 March Notes 31 March
2015 2016
£000 £000

141,436 Property, Plant and Equipment 11 145,174
98 Heritage Assets 12 113

802 Investment Property 13 737
711 Intangible Assets 14 564

50 Long-term Investments 50
131 Long-term Debtors 157

143,228 Long-term Assets 146,795

14,315 Short-term Investments 21,027
671 Assets Held for Sale 18 607

2,348 Short-term Debtors 16 3,007
10,082 Cash and Cash Equivalents 17 7,171
27,416 Current Assets 31,812

(26) Short-term Borrowing (26)
(5,798) Short-term Creditors 19 (6,681)
(1,711) Provisions 20 (1,682)
(7,535) Current Liabilities (8,389)

(67,456) Long-term Borrowing (67,456)
(34,624) Other Long-term Liabilities 35 (30,354)

(549) Grants Receipts in Advance – Capital 30 (550)
(102,629) Long Term Liabilities (98,360)

60,480 Net Assets 71,858

Usable Reserves 21
2,055 General Fund 2,101
8,968 Housing Revenue Account 8,968
9,274 Earmarked Reserves – General Fund 7,441

200                                    – Housing Revenue Account 200
- Major Repairs Reserve 2,609

1,907 Capital Receipts Reserve 2,579
1,522 Capital Grants Unapplied 1,688

23,926 25,586
Unusable Reserves 22

12,652 Revaluation Reserve 14,870
59,298 Capital Adjustment Account 62,483

(34,624) Pension Reserve (30,354)
59 Deferred Capital Receipts 56

(780) Collection Fund Adjustment Account (716)
(51) Accumulated Absences Adjustment Account (67)

36,554 46,272
60,480 Total Reserves 71,858

Page 41



CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2014/15 2014/15  2015/16 2015/16
£000 £000  £000 £000

4,468 Net surplus on the provision of services 3,299

8,804

Adjustments to net surplus or deficit on the 
provision of services for non-cash movements 
(Note 23) 5,164

(1,968) 6,836

Adjustments for items included in the net 
surplus or deficit on the provision of services 
that are investing and financing activities (Note 
23) (2,358) 2,806

11,304 Net cash flows from Operating Activities 6,105

(10,540) Investing Activities  (Note 24) (9,624)

873 Financing Activities (Note 25) 608

1,637
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents (2,911)

8,445
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of 
the reporting period 10,082

10,082
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 
reporting period (Note 17) 7,171

Page 42



Get the most from this publication

The Code is prepared by the CIPFA/LASAAC 
Code Board under the oversight of the 
Financial Reporting Advisory Board. 

The Code is prepared on the basis that the 
purpose of a local authority’s published 
Statement of Accounts is to give electors, those 
subject to locally levied taxes and charges, 
members of the authority (as representatives 
of service recipients), service users and other 
interested parties clear information about the 
authority’s finances. It should answer such 
questions as: 

 � What did the authority’s services cost in the 
year of account? 

 � Where did the money come from? 

 � What were the authority’s assets and 
liabilities at the year-end? 

The Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (the Code) 
specifies the principles and practices of 
accounting required to give a ‘true and fair’ view of 
the financial position, financial performance and 
cash flows of a local authority, including group 
financial statements where a local authority has 
material interests in subsidiaries, associates or 
joint ventures.

The Code is based on European Union adopted 
International Financial Reporting Standards as 
they apply to local authority circumstances. 
It prescribes the accounting treatment and 
disclosures for all normal transactions of a local 
authority. 

The Code is supported by a number of detailed 
accounting recommendations that have evolved 
as best accounting practice over many years. 
The provisions of the Code are updated where 
professional or statutory developments make it 
appropriate. 

This edition of the Code has effect for financial 
years commencing on or after 1 April 2015. It 
reflects a number of changes to accounting 
practice since the 2014/15 Code, including:

 � The introduction of a new section on fair value 
measurement in chapter two (Concepts and 
Principles) to reflect the adoption of IFRS 
13 Fair Value Measurement. The 2015/16 
Code includes a number of consequential 

www.cipfa.org/publications Published March 2015

Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 
2015/16

©
 2

01
5 

CI
PF

A

APPENDIX B

Page 43



amendments following the adoption of the 
standard. The most substantial of these 
are amendments to section 4.1 (Property, 
Plant and Equipment), to introduce the new 
definition and disclosure requirements for 
fair value measurement to surplus assets; 
amendments to introduce the fair value 
definition and disclosure requirements to the 
financial instruments section of the Code; and 
the change in definition of fair value across a 
number of sections of the Code, for example the 
revenue recognition and investment property 
sections, as this new standard will apply 
when another section of the Code (or an IFRS) 
requires or permits fair value measurement.

 � Amendments to chapter one to underline 
CIPFA/LASAAC’s view of the importance of the 
consideration of materiality when preparing 
disclosures for local authority financial 
statements. 

 � Clarification in section 4.1 (Property, Plant 
and Equipment) of the current adaptation of 
the measurement requirements for property, 
plant and equipment following the adoption of 
IFRS 13 and the introduction of the concept of 
current value. The 2015/16 Code has changed 
the measurement requirements for assets 
classified as surplus assets. These assets are 
now to be measured at fair value in accordance 
with the definition in IFRS 13 and without any 
adaptations to that definition.

 � Introduction in section 4.1 of an interpretation 
to clarify what a short period means for the 
measurement of a class of assets for local 
authorities 

 � Amendments to chapter one (Introduction), 
chapter three (Financial Statements), chapter 
six (Employee Benefits) and appendix B 
(Sources and Legislation) as a result of 
the Local Authority Accounts (Scotland) 
Regulations 2014.

 � Amendments to chapter one, chapter three 
and appendix B as a result of the Accounts and 
Audit (Wales) Regulations 2014.

 � Following adoption of the amendments 
in the Update to the 2014/15 Code, minor 
clarifications of the reporting requirements in 
appendix E (Accounting for Schools in Local 
Authorities in England and Wales).

 � Clarification in section 3.4 (Presentation 
of Financial Statements) of the reporting 
requirements for disclosures that support the 
Movement in Reserves Statement.

 � Confirmation in section 4.10 (Heritage Assets) 
that the measurement of heritage assets shall 
continue to be made by any method that is 
appropriate and relevant and rationalises the 
disclosures of heritage assets following the 
introduction of FRS 102 The Financial Reporting 
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of 
Ireland. 

Get details of the complete publication here.
©

 2
01

5 
CI

PF
A

Page 44

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/c/code-of-practice-on-local-authority-accounting-in-the-united-kingdom-201516-online
kentrotter
Cross-Out



1 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

APPENDIX C
Governance & Audit – 26th May 2016                    

Year end Accounts position – ending 31st March 2016
Status

All ledger entries complete as at Friday 29th April 2016. Schedules in preparation and expected to be 
available last week of May 2016.

General Fund 

Reserves

SOUTH HOLLAND 
DISTRICT COUNCIL

Balance
31st March

2015 Contributions Expenditure Transfers

Balance
31st March

2016

Change 
from 
previous 
forecast

Council Tax Funding (4,480,129) (1,502,836) 1,382,711 1,896,025 (2,704,228) (358,877)
GF Insurance Reserve (256,767) 0 36,767 0 (220,000) 0
Transformation Reserve (1,818,940) (102,895) 882,623 66,441 (972,770) 43,293
Repair  & Renewal (200,924) (202,441) 164,855 0 (238,511) (89,487)
Investment and Growth 0 411,060 (3,716,230) (3,305,170) (5,000)
Planning Reserve (366,872) 0 236,872 130,000 0 0
Section 106 (40,080) 0 0 40,080 0 0
Spalding Special Exps (153,823) 0 0 153,823 0 0
Property Acquisition (1,000,000) 0 0 1,000,000 0 0
Affordable Housing (118,000) 0 0 118,000 0 0
Capital Reserve (761,708) (110,000) 607,000 264,708 0 0
Climate Change (47,154) 0 0 47,154 0 0
Community Cohesion (19,189) 0 19,189 0 0 0
Emergency Planning (10,000) 0 10,000 0 0 0
Total GF Specific 
Reserves (9,273,585) (1,918,172) 3,751,077 0 (7,440,679) (410,072)
  
Represented by:

Increased funds assigned to Capital Financing 190,675
Lower Repairs costs from R & R reserve 89,487
Revenue grant commitments 85,200
Members budget 44,856
Additional in year savings 45,720
iTrent installation (funded from Transformation) (43,293)
Additional cost of Haley Stewart gates (Spalding Special) (2,573)

£410,072
Work is in progress to determine final status on the capital programme particularly in respect of the 
ICT requirements for system security and digitalisation. 

Project costs and programme for iTrent are in progress to allow 2016/17 monitoring. Status of the 
ELDC involvement in the project is currently unknown.

Invest to save projects and departmental one off cost contingency are included in an operational risk 
reserve (£500k) within the Council Tax reserve. This also includes Housing Benefit (LA Error) and 
business rates (appeals) which are currently standing risks on the out turn.Page 45

file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1
file:///C:/Users/kentrotter/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.MSO/B7A6400A.xlsx%23RANGE!A1


2 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

Revenue Out turn

Analysis of the final position of £290k below budget against the quarter 3 forecast of £244k below is 
presented in the following table..

 Major Variances Forecast Out 
turn Change Comments

 £'000 £'000 £'000  
Corporate Contingency -31 -31 0 Brought forward from Q1
     
HRA service Review -384 -384 0 Review of HRA service Costs
Recurring variance exercise -78 -78 0 Agreed with budget holders
Homelessness grants budget -28 -32 -4 Commitments review
Lease mowers -25 -32 -7 New leased mowers savings planned
Members pensions -29 -29 0 Pension scheme ceased
CPBS contract inflation -39 -29 10 1% inflation not agreed
Recurring savings -583 -584 -1  
Devolution project 30 30 0 Greater Lincolnshire bid
Planning application income -54 -112 -58 Major applications 
Legal services -64 -72 -8 Demand led service. 14/15 surplus returned

ICT invest to save 35 35 0 Oracle savings 20k savings per annum going 
forward

Salary Forecast 36 36 0  
Investment income -25 -25 0 Improved investment returns
Funding- Personal search fees -57 -35 22 Windfall personal search fee  / costs settlement
Funding-New Burdens -19 -19 0 Additional new burdens
Environmental Services -136 -136 0 Weekly collection grant / Insurance costs
Transfer from Insurance reserve -37 -37 0  
Statutory accounting adjustments 1,660 1,660 0 Voluntary MRP
Transfer to Earmarked Reserves 100 100 0 Pride in South Holland 2016/17
Transfer from earmarked reserves -723 -723 0  
Capital Expenditure financed from reserve -164 -164 0 Useable Capital Receipts
Homelessness  -25 -25 Prevention activity
Local plan contribution  15 15 professional fees
Premises Insurance  10 10 Premium increase on review
One off adjustments 582 538 -44  
     
Total corporate contingency -32 -77 -45  
     
Funding-forecast Q3 -202 -203 -1 NNDR additional income forecast
Funding-New Homes Bonus -10 -10 0 Final grant determination
Sub total funding adjustments -212 -213 -1  
     
Total Variance to Budget -244 -290 -46  
All figures are draft and are being sense checked as part of the closedown procedures.

Page 46



3 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

Housing Revenue Account 

Reserves

Housing Revenue Account Reserves Forecast           
£000's

Out Turn           
£000's

Change           
£000's

Cumulative Working Balance 8,968 8,968 0
Budget 2015-16 (147) (147) 0
Rollover of capital programme from 2014-15 approved (244) (244) 0

Forecast outturn variance 391 391 0
Forecast balance on the HRA at 31.3.16 8,968 8,968 0
Insurance Reserve 200 200 0
Major Repairs Reserve 2,409 2,609 200
Total HRA  reserves at 31.3.16 11,577 11,777 200

Major repairs balance assigned to the Affordable Housing capital programme for timing differences 
on new build project financing (1 for 1 replacement can only be used on completion of the dwelling) 
and potential acceleration of purchase of units.

Revenue Out turn

 2015-16

 Budget Forecast Out 
turn Comments

 £ 000's £ 000's £ 000's  
     
Rent Income - Dwellings (15,562) (15,462) (15,464)  
Rent Income - Non Dwellings (132) (156) (161)  
Charges for Services & Facilities (1,204) (934) (1,142) Alarm monitoring not in forecast
Contributions to Expenditure (569) (89) (97)  
Other income 0 (78) (145) Energy Grants (Capital Projects )
Total Income (17,467) (16,719) (17,008)  
     
Repairs & Maintenance 4,006 3,033 3,210 Asbestos Management / Capital
Supervision & Management 2,542 2,824 3,130  
Service charge costs 1,173 1,225 1,289 Alarm monitoring not in forecast
Depreciation (MRA) 1,596 1,595 2,288 Component accounting
Provision for Doubtful Debts 393 120 54  
Total Expenditure 9,710 8,797 9,971  
     
Contribution from Operations (7,757) (7,922) (7,037)  
     
Financing charges 2,370 2,310 2,283 Additional Investment income
Revenue Contributions (RCCO) 5,778 5,612 4,754 Depreciation adjustment
Housing Subsidy 0    
     
Net operating (Surplus) / Deficit 391 0 0  
     
Reserves     
Balance - Brought Forward (8,968) (8,968) (8,968)  
Balance - Carried Forward (8,577) (8,968) (8,968)  
     

Page 47



4 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

The forecast variances include several technical areas and includes major changes which were 
included in the 2016/17 Budget and were examined by Governance & Audit so are not repeated in 
this report

Major variances and potential impact on 2016/17 are shown below

Area Forecast Out Turn Change Comments

Income (16,719) (17,008) (289)

£184k income for lifeline / Garages transferring 
to GF in 2016/17. £67k one off misc. income. 
£38k additional service charges ongoing with 
accelerated savings to be shown in 2016/17 and 
MTFP adjusted for 2017/18.

Repairs & 
Maintenance 3,033 3,210 177

Capital expenditure for Electrical upgrades and 
boiler replacements £180k was not able to be 
identified in current CSU system. No change to 
MTFP required as £1m reduction In costs in this 
area have been validated by the out turn. In year 
overspend offset by RCCO savings.

Supervision & 
Management 2,824 3,130 306

Set up costs for Parkside crescent & Severn road 
£114k awaiting capitalisation if revised WH 
business plan accepted. One off: pension fund 
/central services adjustments £60k; Allocations 
software changes in Northgate £50k; Property / 
CSU / Tenancy agreement  reviews £51k. 
Additional costs associated with void properties 
including council Tax £31k have been incurred 
which needs an urgent review as costs not in the 
MTFP.

Service 
charge costs 1,225 1,289 64

£178k costs for lifeline transferring to GF in 
2016/17. Utilities accruals regulated with one off 
£65k benefit. Other employee savings £40k which 
will be required for vacancy factor savings in 
2016/17.

Depreciation 
(MRA) 1,595 2,288 693

Component accounting introduced and 
depreciation rates adjusted. MTFP to be adjusted 
with corresponding reduction in RCCO.

Provision for 
Doubtful 

Debts
120 54 (66)

Based on broad brush % which has been in use 
for several years. Budget includes potential 
welfare reform costs so no change to MTFP.

Financing 
charges 2,310 2,283 (27)

Total investment income £64k against forecast of 
£37K. Budget includes £25k improvement in 
2016/17 so no chance to MTFP. Allocation 
between HRA / General fund to be based on full 
working capital balances from 2016/17.

Revenue 
Contributions 

(RCCO)
5,612 4,754 (858)

Depreciation increase (£693k) substituted 
revenue contributions in capital financing.  
Capital out turn financing (£365k). £200k 
additional contribution to reserve for affordable 
housing in 2016/17. 

0 0 0
 

Page 48



5 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

Capital out turn 

 Code  Project  Revised 
Budget 

 Actual to 
date 

 (Under spend)  Over spend  Slippage  Released  Forecast Prior 
Years

2015/16 
Forecast

 2016/17 
Forecast 

 2017/18 
Forecast 

 2018/19 
Forecast 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
0

Strategy & Governance 416,000          76,567          (12,058) 8,000 (51,375) (284,000) 76,567 -           76,567 51,375 -                -                
Commercialisation 1,556,000      1,498,063    (19,556) 57,949 (36,330) (60,000) 1,498,063 -           1,498,063 36,330 -                -                
Place 1,149,000      395,657       (2,663) 0 (541,108) (209,572) 395,657 -           395,657 541,108 -                -                
Housing Revenue Account 7,500,000      4,449,504    (44,093) 0 0 (3,006,403) 4,449,504 -           4,449,504 -                    -                -                

Capital Programme 10,621,000    6,419,791    (78,370) 65,949 (628,813) (3,559,975) 6,419,791 -           6,419,791   628,813           -                -                

Grants & Contributions (1,510,000) (818,606) 2,663 (57,949) 541,108 205,572 (818,606) 0 (818,606) (541,108) 0 0
Capital Receipts (697,000) (101,067) 12,058 0 25,000 558,875 (101,067) 0 (101,067) (25,000) 0 0
s106 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Revenue Contributions (8,414,000) (5,500,118) 63,649 (8,000) 62,705 2,795,528 (5,500,118) 0 (5,500,118) (62,705) 0 0
Borrowing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Capital Financing (10,621,000) (6,419,791) 78,370 (65,949) 628,813 3,559,975 (6,419,791) 0 (6,419,791) (628,813) 0 0

South Holland District Council - Capital Programme 2015/16

Spend profile

Slippage / Release of funds are being examined in all areas.

P
age 49



6 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

Code Project  Revised 
Budget 

 Actual to 
date 

 (Under spend)  Over spend  Slippage  Released  Forecast Prior 
Years

2015/16 
Forecast

 2016/17 
Forecast 

 2017/18 
Forecast 

 2018/19 
Forecast 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
0

740 System backup upgrade 30,000            -                30,000-        -                 0
741 Digitalisation 200,000          -                200,000-      -                 0
742 Juniper Replacement 15,000            10,156          4,844-                  10,156          10,156
743 Network Upgrades 25,000            -                25,000-           -                 0 25,000              
744 Disaster Recovery 30,000            -                30,000-        -                 0
745 Firewall Replacement 30,000            23,787          6,213-                  23,787          23,787
768 ICT  Strategy 24,000            -                24,000-        -                 0
70E Council Chamber upgrade 57,000            38,625          8,000             26,375-           38,625          38,625 26,375              
786 Operator Assisted payments 5,000              3,999            1,001-                  3,999             3,999

Strategy & Governance 416,000          76,567          12,058-                8,000             51,375-           284,000-      76,567          -           76,567         51,375              -                -                

720 Environmental Health 53,000            96,185          14,526-                57,711           96,185          96,185
735 Crease Drove 60,000            -             60,000-        -                 0
738 Broadband Lincs 607,000          570,580      90-                   36,330-         570,580        570,580 36,330              
746 Moulton Park 316,000          311,060      4,940-              311,060        311,060
70F Grants for Growth 520,000          520,238       238                 520,238        520,238

Commercialisation 1,556,000      1,498,063    19,556-                57,949           36,330-           60,000-        1,498,063    -           1,498,063   36,330              -                -                

733 CCTV 10,000            -                10,000-        -                 0
736 West Marsh Road Depot 10,000            -                10,000-        -                 0
737 Ayscoughfee - Tennis Courts 40,000            -                40,000-        -                 0
739 Air Quality Monitoring 30,000            27,337          2,663-                  27,337          27,337
750 Disabled Facilities Grants 325,000          191,684       133,316-         191,684        191,684 133,316           
765 Spalding Cemetery expansion 49,000            -                49,000-        -                 0
767 Asset Management system 25,000            -                25,000-        -                 0
769 Footway Lighting 25,000            25,000          25,000          25,000
770 Decent Homes Loans 75,000            9,428          65,572-        9,428             9,428
776 Travellers Sites 550,000          142,208      407,792-       142,208        142,208 407,792           
780 Fulney Field Play area 10,000            10,000-        

Place 1,149,000      395,657       2,663-                  -                 541,108-         209,572-      395,657        -           395,657       541,108           -                -                

General Fund 3,121,000      1,970,287    34,277-                65,949           628,813-         553,572-      1,970,287    -           1,970,287   628,813           -                -                

Grants & Contributions (1,510,000) (818,606) 2,663 (57,949) 541,108 205,572 (818,606) (818,606) (541,108)
Capital Receipts (489,000) (62,942) 12,058 0 25,000 389,000 (62,942) (62,942) (25,000)
s106 0 0 0
Revenue Contributions (1,122,000) (1,088,739) 19,556 (8,000) 62,705 (41,000) (1,088,739) (1,088,739) (62,705)
Borrowing

General Fund (3,121,000) (1,970,287) 34,277 (65,949) 628,813 553,572 (1,970,287) 0 (1,970,287) (628,813) 0 0

Spend profile

General Fund - Capital Programme 2015/16

ICT projects shown as released are being reviewed and likely to be reported as slippage in the final out turn report

Grants for Growth phase 1 project has been audited and there are some technical queries which have been raised in South Holland and also in most other parts of the country. 
The main issue is support for Energy efficient vehicles has been given but this appears to be outside the terms of the ERDF scheme. Local guidance from DCLG does not include 
this restriction. Worst case is that £130,000 of grant may be repaid and financing of the 2015/16 programme has been amended to show this position.

P
age 50



7 | P a g e G o v e r n a n c e  &  A u d i t 2 6 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 6

Code Project  Revised 
Budget 

Actual to date  (Under 
spend) 

 (Over 
spend) 

 Slippage  Released  Forecast Prior 
Years

2015/16 
Forecast

 2016/17 
Forecast 

 2017/18 
Forecast 

 2018/19 
Forecast 

£ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £
-                   -                 0

701 Central Heating 1,330,000      976,939           353,061-      976,939        976,939       
704 Kitchen / Bathroom 2,110,000      2,072,243        37,757-        2,072,243    2,072,243   
705 Roofs 1,750,000      930,968           819,032-      930,968        930,968       

Decent Homes 5,190,000      3,980,150        -              -                 -                  1,209,850-  3,980,150    -           3,980,150   -                     -                 -                 

708 Sewage Treatment plant 60,000            49,480              10,520-       49,480          49,480         
727 Off street parking 140,000          24,611           115,389-      24,611          24,611         -                     
778 Asbestos Removal 473,000          -                473,000-      -                 -                

Major Area schemes 673,000          74,091              10,520-       -                 -                  588,389-      74,091          -           74,091         -                     -                 -                 

711 Allocations & Lettings 18,000            -                    18,000-        -                 -                
726 Asset Management 75,000            52,559              22,441-       52,559          52,559         
768 ICT Strategy 20,000            8,868                11,132-       8,868             8,868           

IT / System 113,000          61,427              33,573-       -                 -                  18,000-        61,427          -           61,427         -                     -                 -                 

706 Major Adaptations 466,000          233,161           232,839-      233,161        233,161       -                     
Aids & Adaptations 466,000          233,161           -              -                 -                  232,839-      233,161        -           233,161       -                     -                 -                 

724 New Build 900,000          24,424              875,576-      24,424          24,424         -                     
797 Buy Back - Shared Ownership 158,000          76,251              81,749-        76,251          76,251         

Affordable Houisng 1,058,000      100,675           -              -                 -                  957,325-      100,675        -           100,675       -                     -                 -                 

Total - HRA 7,500,000      4,449,504        44,093-       -                 -                  3,006,403-  4,449,504    -           4,449,504   -                     -                 -                 

Grants & Contributions
Capital Receipts (208,000) (38,125) 169,875 (38,125) (38,125)
s106
Revenue Contributions (7,292,000) (4,411,379) 44,093 2,836,528 (4,411,379) (4,411,379)
Borrowing

General Fund (7,500,000) (4,449,504) 44,093 0 0 3,006,403 (4,449,504) 0 (4,449,504) 0 0 0

Budget Holder: Richard Scorthorne

Spend profile

Housing Revenue Account - Capital Programme 2015/16

Final position – 2016/17 programmes were rewritten to include all activities going forward.

Asbestos removal is now reported as planned maintenance in the revenue statement

P
age 51



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX D
South Holland District Council

Annual Governance Statement

Scope of responsibilities

South Holland Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, that public money is safeguarded and 
properly accounted for, used economically, efficiently and effectively.  The Council also has 
a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination 
of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.  

In discharging this overall responsibility, South Holland Council is also responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of governance which: facilitates the effective exercise 
of its functions; guarantees that the financial and operational management of the authority is 
effective and includes arrangements for the management of risk.
 
South Holland Council has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government. A copy of the code is available on our website at 
www.sholland.gov.uk. This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code 
and also meets the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations (England) 2011 & 
2015.  

The purpose of the Governance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, 
by which the council is directed and controlled and the activities through which it accounts to, 
engages with and leads its communities. It enables the council to monitor the achievement 
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to the delivery of 
appropriate services and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to 
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, 
aims and objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of 
effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the council’s policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and 
to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at South Holland Council for the year ended 
31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.

The governance framework

The council is responsible for developing policies, making constitutional decisions and 
deciding local legislation. The council elects a leader for a term of four years, and the leader 
appoints a cabinet of up to nine other councillors, each holding a portfolio of responsibility.
The constitution of the council is updated throughout the year and sets out how the council 
operates. It states what matters are reserved for decision by the whole council, the 
responsibilities of the cabinet and the matters reserved for collective and individual 
decisions, and the powers delegated to panels, committees and community councils. 
Decision-making powers not reserved for councillors are delegated to chief officers and 

Page 53

http://www.sholland.gov.uk/


heads of service of the council. The monitoring officer ensures that all decisions made are 
legal and supports the standards committee in promoting high standards of conduct amongst 
members.

The Policy Development Panel & the Performance Monitoring Panel scrutinise decisions 
made by the cabinet, and those delegated to officers, and review services provided by the 
council and its partners. The monitoring officer promotes and supports the scrutiny functions 
of the council.

The Governance and Audit committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of corporate governance in the council. It provides independent 
assurance of the adequacy of the governance arrangements; including the risk management 
framework, the associated control environment, financial and non-financial performance 
including exposure to risk and potential threats to the control environment, oversight of the 
financial reporting process and scrutiny of the treasury management strategy and policies.

The overall budget and policy framework is set by an elected council assembly and all 
decisions are made within this framework. The council assembly is responsible for approving 
the general fund budget; the housing revenue account rent charges and budget, Capital 
strategy & expenditure programmes, Special expenses, Treasury Management & the 
Medium Term Financial Plan.

The statutory officers of South Holland Council are the Chief Executive, the Monitoring 
Officer and the Section 151 Officer. They are responsible for ensuring the Council acts within 
the law and in accordance with established policies and procedures. The Section 151 Officer 
is specifically responsible for the proper discharge of financial arrangements and must 
advise the Council where any proposal might be unlawful or where expenditure is likely to 
exceed resources, and to ensure that the authority’s financial management arrangements 
conform to the governance requirements as set out in the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer (2010).  The 
Monitoring Officer is responsible for advising the Council if any proposal, decision or 
omission is likely to give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration.
The statutory officers are also members of the authority’s Executive Management Team. 
Service Managers are responsible for ensuring that legislation and policy relating to service 
delivery and health and safety are implemented in practice.

Strategic leadership
The authority updates and issues a corporate plan on an annual basis setting out ambitions 
and aims for delivering an increase to the prosperity and wellbeing of our residents and 
businesses, whilst striving to protect and enhance the environment and unique historic 
character of the district. It explains the context of the area of South Holland, the challenges 
faced, and how the views of residents influence priorities for action. The corporate plan 
highlights planned activities over a four year period and sets out corporate values & 
behaviours. 

Partnership working
The financial regulations of the council set out the principles of effective management of 
resources when working in partnership, including the setting of clear objectives and 
management of financial and delivery risks. 

The South Holland council shared management arrangement with Breckland District Council 
is now well-established and was reviewed during 2015, leading to structure changes to 
better reflect the needs of the Council at a strategic and operational level. This commitment 
to sharing a management team does not encompass the elected councils which will continue 
to exercise independent democratically accountable local government in their respective 

Page 54



districts, each having its own governance arrangements. A Memorandum of Understanding 
is in place, and sets out the governance arrangements for shared management and joint 
working.

Companies
Compass Point Business Services (East Coast) Ltd. (CPBS) was set up by South Holland 
and East Lindsey District Councils in August 2010 to deliver human resources, customer 
services, ICT, revenues and benefits, and financial services to the two authorities. South 
Holland District Council owns a 37% stake in the company with the remaining share being 
owned by East Lindsey District Council. Each authority has equal voting rights.  

The CPBS board of directors includes councillors and chief officers of both authorities. The 
company has regularly reported its progress on performance of services to the monitoring 
officer, with quarterly shareholder performance being subject to Scrutiny. An annual 
business plan is approved by council. The ongoing governance arrangements are set out in 
the Service Level Agreement (SLA), and a Management Agreement is in place that sets out 
the partnership arrangements, principles and parameters.

The Council is the sole shareholder of South Holland Local Housing Community Interest 
Company. The board of directors is responsible for preparing the Director’s report, financial 
statements and governance arrangements for the company. 

Welland Homes Limited was set up during the year and the council is the sole shareholder. 
The board of directors is responsible for preparing the Director’s report, financial statements 
and governance arrangements for the company. Officers of the council work within this 
framework to deliver services to the company and Welland Homes operates within the 
governance arrangements of the council when delivering services to the authority. 

Quality of service
The annual business planning processes are part of an integrated planning framework which 
ensures that service planning and related resource management flow from the Corporate 
Plan and the Medium Term Financial Plan. The overall effectiveness of services is measured 
through the performance management framework. Quarterly service and financial 
performance is reported formally to Cabinet. 
 
Transparency
The Council strives to be publicly accountable and routinely presents its work with openness 
and transparency on its website in accordance with the requirements of the Local 
Government Transparency Code 2014.

Complaints
 The Council has in place a whistle-blowing policy as well as a compliments and complaints 
procedure that ensure that any referrals are fully investigated, properly resolved and learning 
applied to service delivery. Systems and procedures have been enhanced to ensure that 
complaints/service requests are a cornerstone of the management approach of the Council

Functions and roles

Effective leadership 
The Constitution sets out roles and responsibilities for the Council and its standing 
committees. All working groups have clear terms of reference for their work in supporting 
policy development and progress monitoring. Roles and responsibilities of Councillors are 
defined in both generic and specific job descriptions that have been tested through 
consultation and based on a recommended national model with some additional local 

Page 55



interpretation. A clear Officer/Member delegation framework exists to provide clarity on the 
powers entrusted in those appointed to make decisions on behalf of the Council.

The Council has adopted a standard form of committee report which seeks to ensure that all 
matters coming to Councillors for decision have first received consideration in respect of all 
appropriate and necessary, legal, financial and professional matters, as well as risk. This 
has been expanded to include coverage of technical matters such as carbon footprint. The 
Council updates and publishes Key Decision and Exemption Plans. This is a record of all 
key and exempt decisions the Executive expects to make in the next twelve months. 
 
Working relationships
The Constitution of the council sets out all schemes of Delegated Authority for Officers, 
including the conditions of such delegation.

All staff have conditions of employment and job descriptions that set out their roles and 
responsibilities. There is also a competency framework. The framework defines the 
competencies required of each post in the Council so that individuals can be assessed 
against them to identify suitability for the posts, areas of strength and areas for further 
development.  Competencies can be used to measure how well we do things and are 
essential to the performance management process. The competencies provide consistent 
standards across the organisation and help to identify the types of behaviour the Council 
wishes to promote, develop and engender.    

Standards of conduct 
The council has a duty to promote the highest standards of conduct and personal behaviour 
from members including co-opted members of the authority and expects the highest 
standards of conduct and personal behaviour from staff. These standards are defined and 
communicated through codes of conduct, protocols and other documents.

Financial and risk management
The Executive Director (Commercialisation) is designated the responsible officer for the 
administration of the financial affairs of the council under S151 of the Local Government Act 
1972. This includes ensuring the lawfulness and financial prudence of decision making; 
providing advice, particularly on financial impropriety, publicity and budget issues, giving 
financial information; and acting as the Council money laundering reporting officer. The 
Section 151 Officer is specifically responsible for the proper discharge of financial 
arrangements and must advise the Council where any proposal might be unlawful or where 
expenditure is likely to exceed resources, and to ensure that financial management 
arrangements conform to the governance requirements as set out in the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer. 

The Council operates a strong financial management framework to ensure the lawful and 
best economic use of the Council’s assets. Financial regulations are supported by effective 
financial procedures underpinned by the work of internal and external audit. Financial 
regulations and contract procedure rules are periodically reviewed to ensure they remain 
effective in supporting sound internal control.   

Legal and regulatory compliance - Compliance with established policies, procedures, laws 
and regulations is ensured by the requirements of the constitution to give the Chief 
Executive, the Monitoring Officer (Democratic Services and Legal Manager) and the Chief 
Finance Officer (Executive Director Place) the opportunity to comment on every report 
submitted to a decision making body. The Monitoring Officer has a legal duty to ensure the 
lawfulness and fairness of decision making. 

Page 56



Councillor and officer development 
The Council has adopted a Councillor Development Policy and Strategy and delivers a 
comprehensive training programme to ensure that councillors have the opportunity to further 
develop skills, necessary to serve their communities. In March 2015 the Council renewed its 
accreditation with the Member Development Charter.  

Staff performance is managed using a performance development framework. The 
Performance Development Review (PDR) process improves communications and ensures 
employees have clear objectives and an understanding of how they contribute to corporate 
priorities and goals.  All Council employees have an annual Performance Development 
Review which is followed up and monitored by the reviewer and reviewee throughout the 
year. 

There is a strong working relationship between Councillors and staff, and the Council aims to 
ensure that they have the skills, resources and support needed to perform effectively in their 
roles. The Council has an embedded induction process and a continuous development 
ethos.

Senior officers are also expected to keep abreast of developments in their profession at all 
times.

Community engagement
The Council is committed to listening to and involving the community and consistently 
demonstrates that it does, therefore both the Medium Term Financial Plan and the Corporate 
Plan went out for public consultation prior to adoption. Our consultation processes provide 
useful feedback on services, public perceptions and quality of life; we provide guidance on 
good practice and we profile respondents to better understand equalities implications. The 
Housing Service employs a tenant engagement officer to work closely with our tenants, 
some of whom are also our most vulnerable, and understand their specific needs. Our 
community engagement strategy provides a robust strategic framework for addressing the 
most significant barriers to engagement in South Holland, and a programme of action for 
improving information provision, consultation and empowerment.  This is complemented by 
our web strategy and on-line capability. 

Risk Management
Risk management continues to an integral part of the daily activities of the council. All 
Member decisions are supported by a commentary on the risks involved in taking the 
decision with this developing greater Member appreciation of risk, not least through reports 
to the Governance and Audit Committee. 

Arrangements are embedded in the Corporate Risk Management Strategy and risk registers 
which are regularly reviewed and changed in line with current circumstances..  

Legal powers 
The Council understands its legal powers and limitations, and seek to ensure that it acts 
lawfully at all times. The Monitoring Officer is responsible for advising the Council if any 
proposal, decision or omission is likely to give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration.

Review of effectiveness 

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness 
of its governance framework including the system of internal control. The review of 
effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the authority who 
have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance environment, 

Page 57



the annual report of the Head of Internal Audit, and also by comments made by the external 
auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates. 

The Governance and Audit Committee provides advice on the effectiveness of the 
governance arrangements. It has an important role as the designated audit committee for 
the Council and considers the findings of internal and external audit. It ensures that audit 
recommendations are implemented and considers the effectiveness of arrangements for 
securing internal control. It challenges the authority’s performance against key performance 
indicators and assesses key corporate risks on an exceptions basis to ensure that sufficient 
mitigating action is taken to manage corporate risk.  

The S151 Officer has provided the Internal Audit service through a contract with Lincolnshire 
County Council which monitors the effectiveness of the control environment and reports 
specific recommendations to the senior management and the Governance and Audit 
Committee. An annual internal audit report and opinion is also produced for the Governance 
and Audit Committee which comments on the overall effectiveness of our control 
environment. Adequacy of internal controls is scored as either a full, substantial, limited or 
no assurance by internal audit.

From the work undertaken by Internal Audit during the year the Head of Internal Audit and 
Risk Management provides an opinion on the effectiveness of South Holland District 
Council’s arrangements for governance, risk management and control arrangements. 
Governance and risk management are deemed to be ‘Performing Well’ with financial control 
and internal control or ‘Performing Adequately – some improvements required’. Some issues 
have been brought to the attention of the Governance & Audit Committee including Grant 
claim audits particularly in respect of Housing Benefit subsidy. All issues raised are subject 
to action plans to improve the control environment.

The Executive Management team receives regular reports from governance boards which 
were set up to manage corporate performance and risk. These boards include 
Transformation, Commercialisation & Growth, employee relations, safeguarding, health and 
safety, emergency planning, and finance, as well as the statutory officers group. There are a 
number of other groups covering cross cutting themes and specific services which also 
report to the Corporate Management Team.

South Holland Council also participates in the Lincolnshire Counter-Fraud partnership and 
regular updates are circulated within applicable departments & Partner organisations to 
ensure controls are amended as necessary.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of 
the governance framework by Cabinet and Governance and Audit Committee, and that the 
arrangements continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance 
framework. The areas already addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new 
actions planned are outlined below.

Significant governance issues

The work of Internal Audit is highlighted in an Annual Report which may raise concerns on 
service delivery arrangements, management of risks and operation of controls. 

The review of effectiveness provides good overall assurance on the system of internal 
control. Specific opportunities for improvement in governance and internal controls identified 
as part of the assurance processes detailed above have been addressed or are included in 
action plans for the relevant managers.

Page 58



The council faces a number of issues and areas of significant change that will require 
consideration and action as appropriate over the medium to long term:

• Transformation and new ways of working, a combined programme based on Digitalisation, 
Aligning Public Services, Organisational Design and Commercialisation is in progress. 

• The Greater Lincolnshire Devolution agreement signed in March 2016 and potential 
governance issues surrounding a new Combined Authority with Accountable Body status 
and a Mayoral function.

• Ongoing and additional impact of business rates specifically in relation to appeals, and 
generally on the achievement of government targets, the review of business rate retention 
arrangements, potential extension of discretionary rate relief policy on funding and pooling 
arrangements within Greater Lincolnshire.

• Continuing impact of reduced government funding, reductions in housing rents and 
implications of right to buy and other national housing policies.

• Continued potential impact of welfare reform including the delayed introduction of universal 
credit – work is still required to understand the timing and detail of the roll out and to quantify 
the possible impact across the council.

• Ongoing and additional impact of Housing Benefit subsidy particularly in respect of Local 
Authority error rates

Certification

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further 
enhance our governance arrangements, including the continual development of the risk 
management framework. We are satisfied that these steps will address the need for 
improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor their 
implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

We are satisfied that appropriate arrangements are in place to address improvements 
identified in our review of effectiveness. Progress on these improvements and mitigation of 
risks will be monitored by the Executive Management Team and Governance and Audit 
Committee through the year and be considered in our next annual review.

Signed on behalf of South Holland District Council

Anna Graves Gary Porter
Chief Executive Leader of the Council
Date: Date:

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Commercialisation (s151 Officer)

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 26 May 2016

Author: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Subject: Local Council Tax Support Scheme

Purpose: To review the existing Council Tax support scheme and develop a work plan 
for examination of existing and potentially new discounts.

Recommendation: 

1) That Members note the briefing note at Appendix A. 

2) That a revised work plan is completed for the next meeting including specific discounts to be 
examined at each meeting. 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Local Council Tax Support scheme replaced the former national Council Tax Benefit 
(CTB) scheme from April 2013.

1.2 The scheme for pensioners continues to be prescribed by government, and allows up to 
100% support against Council Tax liability.

1.3 In 2014/15 South Holland Council Tax Support Scheme required all working age 
households to pay at least 75% of their Council Tax liability.  This scheme has been 
reviewed annually and retained through 2015/16 and for 2016/17.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Retain the existing Council Tax Support scheme for 2017/18

2.2 Examine all discounts in the Council Tax support scheme and revise the local policy for 
introduction in 2017/18

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The local scheme is now embedded and in its 3rd year of operation. A review of discount 
levels is good practice and national funding for the scheme is diminishing with zero 
contribution from central government by 2019/20.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Audit Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they 
are proactive in examining policies within the financial framework of the Council.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Financial

5.1.1 Council Tax support scheme costs in 2015/16 were approximately £4.400,000.

5.1.2 Working Age claimants elements cost approximately £1,655,000.

Page 61

Agenda Item 7.



5.1.3 The current Medium Term Financial Forecast approved in February 2016 did not include 
any changes to the levels of discounts for working age claimants.

5.1.4 Work on the 2017/18 Medium Term Financial Forecast is due to commence in July 2016 
and any savings targets agreed by committee will be included as they become available for 
consideration. 

5.1.5 Appendix A highlights the main discretionary discounts currently awarded by the council.
 
6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 All.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CTS – Council Tax Support

7.2 CTB – Council Tax Benefit

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Julie Kennealy Executive Director Commercialisation Section151
Telephone Number: 01775 761161
Email: Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk or alternatively 

ktrotter@sholland.gov.uk (Interim Chief Accountant)

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A Council Tax Discounts

Page 62

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL Appendix A
Report on Council Tax Discounts current application of areas of discretion

Council Tax Support

Local Council Tax Support schemes replaced the former national Council Tax Benefit (CTB) 
scheme from April 2013.  The scheme for pensioners continues to be prescribed by 
government, and allows up to 100% support against Council Tax liability.

The scheme for Working Age claimants is determined locally.  The Government set out its 
expectations for local authorities to protect the vulnerable and for schemes to support 
incentives to work. 

In the first year, 2013/14 the government paid local authorities a cash-limited grant that was 
90% of the estimated national expenditure, leaving local authorities with a potential shortfall 
in funding. (For South Holland this represented an 11.4% reduction).  In the first year a 
further one off transitional grant became available to local authorities that adopted a scheme 
which limited the impact on working age.  South Holland accepted these limitations and 
qualified for this grant.

The transitional grant was a one-off and not made available in future years. 

Since 2014/15 the CTS grant has been subsumed within RSG and is no longer separately 
identifiable.

In 2014/15 South Holland Council Tax Support Scheme required all working age households 
to pay at least 75% of their Council Tax liability.  This scheme has been reviewed annually 
and retained through 2015/16 and for 2016/17.

The core principles of South Holland’s local CTS scheme are: -

 Protection for : -
People over pension age (as prescribed by Government)

All War Disablement Pensioners and War Widowers

 People with children, disabilities or caring responsibilities will be supported
Retain the core features and continue to apply the wide range of provision in the 
previous Council Tax Benefit (CTB) scheme that recognised the additional needs of 
the disabled, those with children and those with caring responsibilities.

 Incentives to work will be supported
Retain provision within the previous Council Tax Benefit scheme, thereby 
maintaining the rate at which support is withdrawn as income increases.

The following table illustrates the maximum amount of support that the South Holland’s 
scheme provides for Working Age claimants since introduction of CTS from 2013/14 to 
current.

Page 63



Financial Year Scheme Protection
2013/14 Maximum CTS – 91.5% Protection for war widow(ers)
2014/15 Maximum CTS – 75% Protection for war widow(ers)
2015/16 Maximum CTS – 75% Protection for war widow(ers)
2016/17 Maximum CTS – 75% Protection for war widow(ers)

This table shows, as 31 March 2016, the profile between working age and elderly.  The 
Council has no discretion in terms of the expenditure associated with the support for elderly 
category.  Any saving can only be achieved through working age claimants.

Total Claims Average weekly CT 
liability

Average weekly 
award

All Groups 6,553 £17.27 £12.94
Elderly 3,461 £17.51 £14.57
Working Age 2,892 £16.98 £10.99

The split of 2015/16 scheme expenditure between elderly and working age groups is shown 
in the following table.

Total £4,381,447
Elderly £2,726,738
Working Age £1,654,709

Total scheme expenditure in 2014/15 was £4,539,168

Total scheme expenditure in 2013/14 was £5,243,695

Financial arrangements

Council Tax Support is administered as a local discount and is part of the collection fund.  As 
such the cost of the scheme is borne by major preceptors.

Local authorities (SHDC, LCC and PCC) receive CTS grant through RSG settlement.

South Holland’s ‘share’ of the cost of local Council Tax Support (based on 2016/17 CT 
levels) is around 11%, as demonstrated in the following table.

Council Tax 2016/17 Band D £ %’share’

Lincolnshire County Council £1,128.83 75.75%

South Holland District Council £159.84 10.73%

Police and Crime Commissioner £201.51 13.52%

 £1,490.18

Page 64



The Local Government Finance Act 2012 and subsequent regulations granted billing 
authorities greater discretion over discounts and exemptions for certain categories of 
dwelling from 1st April 2013.

Second Home Discount

From April 2013 South Holland removed the 10% discount it had previously allowed on 
empty furnished /second homes.  The 50% discretionary charge above the 50% statutory 
element generated additional income of £14,469 in 2014/15 and £17,093 in 2015/16.

(Prior to 2013/14 local authorities were able to determine the level of charge above the 
statutory 50% up to an additional 40%, i.e. 90% potential charge minimum; minimum 
statutory discount 10%).  

100% charge in 2014/15 raised £28,938.  50% of this through discretion = additional income 
£14,469.

100% charge in 2015/16 raised £34,186.  50% of this through discretion = additional income 
£17,093.

At the end March 2015 there were 149 properties in this category

At the end March 2016 there were 150 properties in this category

South Holland DC benefits from approximately 11% of additional income raised through not 
allowing any discount on empty unfurnished/second homes through collection fund 
arrangements.

Empty, Unoccupied and Unfurnished Discount

Prior to 2013 properties which had become empty and unfurnished were entitled to a 100% 
exemption for 6 months.

From April 2013 South Holland introduced a 100% discount for a period of one month, after 
which full Council Tax is payable.

 The cost of this discount in 2014/15, £123,941

The cost of this discount in 2015/16 £125,322

At the end March 2015 there were 342 properties in this category.

At the end of March 2016 there were 311 properties in this category. 

South Holland DC shares approximately 11% of the cost of this discount through collection 
fund arrangements. 

Page 65



Empty, Uninhabitable Dwellings

Prior to 2013/14 statutory provision allowed for a 100% exemption for up to 12 months in 
respect of vacant dwellings where major repair works or structural alterations was required, 
underway or recently completed.

The statutory provision was abolished and powers were given to billing authorities to give a 
discount up to 100%.   

South Holland replaced the uninhabitable exemption with a discount of 25% for up to 12 
months.  All Council Taxpayers whose properties fall within this category since 2013 are now 
required to pay 75% of the Council Tax liability.

The cost of this discount in 2014/15 was £5,693

The cost of this discount in 2015/16 was £4,913

At the end March 2015 there were 33 properties in this category.

At the end of March 2016 there were 22 properties in this category. 

South Holland DC shares approximately 11% of the cost of this discount through collection 
fund arrangements. 

Long Term Empty Premium

As well as the new discretions afforded to billing authorities for setting local discount and 
exemption levels for certain empty dwellings, powers were also passed allowing a premium 
to be charged on dwellings left empty and unoccupied for more than 2 years. 
From April 2013 South Holland introduced a premium, to charge 150% Council Tax on such 
dwellings.

Council Tax Premium debit raised in 2014/15 £169,325

Council Tax Premium debit raised in 2015/16 £162,200

At the end March 2015 there were 90 properties in this category

At the end March 2016 there were 78 properties in this category

South Holland DC benefits from approximately 11% of additional income raised through the 
premium through collection fund arrangements.

Page 66



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Director Commercialisation (s151 Officer)

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 26 May 2016

Author: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment

Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
advocate that it is good practice for Audit Committees to undertake regular 
assessments. Thus enabling members to gain an appreciation of what 
affords best practice, to confirm the level of compliance being achieved, 
and to identify any potential areas for enhancements to be made to 
arrangements.

Recommendation: 

1) That Members note the completed checklist at Appendix A and the actions to be completed

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards call for audit committees to assess their remit 
and effectiveness in keeping with Standard 1000 – Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

1.2 CIPFA’s Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist (attached at Appendix A) focuses on 
6 fundamental areas, and 66 individual aspects of operations. The key areas are as follows:

 Establishment, Operation and Duties;
 Internal Control;
 Financial Reporting and Regulatory Matters;
 Internal Audit;
 External Audit; and
 Administration.

1.3 At a workshop session on 24 November 2015 a Finance & Audit desktop review was 
carried out and the checklist, shown in Appendix A, to assess the Audit and Governance 
performance against the CIPFA standard was completed. 

1.4 The exercise identified actions that would improve the effectiveness of the committee. 
These are highlighted bold in the appendix. The actions include producing an annual report 
of the work of the audit committee.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Audit Committee not to complete the Self- 
Assessment exercise, however this would result in no assurance being provided that the 
Committee is assisting the Council in achieving good corporate governance, and is 
sufficiently proactive.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Completion of the Self-Assessment Checklist provides feedback on the effectiveness of the 
current arrangements, and ensures that best practice is followed by the Committee, and 
good corporate governance is achieved.

Page 67

Agenda Item 8.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Audit Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they 
are proactive in helping to raise the profile of internal control, risk management and 
financial reporting matters at the Council.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Examination of the checklist will increase members awareness of the annual governance 
statement and increase the level of detail available in respect of the annual review of 
effectiveness of the Governance Framework.

5.2 Corporate Priorities

5.2.1 The Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas and 
risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

5.3 Financial 

5.3.1 The committee, through its terms of reference forms an important element of the internal 
control system within the council.

 
5.4 Risk Management 

5.4.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the risk management framework, which in turn 
ensures that key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed by following best practice 
and adopting sound terms of reference.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CIPFA - Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Julie Kennealy Executive Director Commercialisation 

(Section151)
Telephone Number 01775 761161
Email: Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk or alternatively 

ktrotter@sholland.gov.uk (Interim Chief Accountant)

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist

Page 68

file:///G:/Committee/Committee/Report%20Guide/2014/THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc
mailto:Julie.Kennealy@breckland-sholland.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

South Holland -  Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment Checklist Review Conducted 26 May 2016

No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1. ESTABLISHMENT, OPERATION AND DUTIES

Role and Remit

1.1 1 Does the audit committee have written terms of
reference?

√ Referenced in Part 3 of the Constitution

1.2 1 Do the terms of reference cover the core functions
of an audit committee as identified in the CIPFA
guidance?

√

1.3 1 Are the terms of reference approved by the council
and reviewed periodically?

√ No changes in 2015/16

1.4 1 Has the audit committee been provided with
sufficient membership, authority and resources to
perform its role effectively and independently?

√

1.5 1 Can the audit committee access other
committees and full council as necessary?

√ The committee minutes are reported to Council. Members also sit on scrutiny
panels. 

1.6 1 Does the authority's Annual Governance
Statement include a description of the audit
committee's establishment and activities?

√

1.7 2 Does the audit committee periodically assess its
own effectiveness?

√

1.8 2 Does the audit committee make a formal
annual report on its work and performance
during the year to full council?

√ Programme for introduction of a report to be agreed

Membership, Induction and training

1.9 1 Has the membership of the audit committee been
formally agreed and a quorum set?

√

1.10 1 Is the chair independent of the executive function? √

1.11 1 Has the audit committee chair either previous
knowledge of, or received appropriate training on,
financial and risk management, accounting
concepts and standards, and the regulatory
regime?

√

P
age 69



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1.12 1 Are new audit committee members provided with
an appropriate induction?

√ There is an ongoing Members' Development Programme   

1.13 1 Have all members skills and experiences been
assessed and training given for identified gaps?

√ Training on finance matters was identified as a need and is being regularly
carried out on specific topics.

1.14 1 Has each member declared his or her business
interests?

√ Members are required to declare business interests in a centrally held register

1.15 2 Are members sufficiently independent of the other
key committees of the council?

√ No member of the committee sits on Cabinet, although a number also have
positions on the council's scrutiny panels

Meetings
1.16 1 Does the audit committee meet regularly? √ Scheduled to meet on four occasions each year
1.17 1 Do the terms of reference set out the frequency of

meetings?
√ Committee reporting cycle is established and is flexible in respect of special or

specific meetings which can be carried out as necessary through the year.

1.18 1 Does the audit committee calendar meet the
authority's business needs, governance needs
and the financial calendar?

√

1.19 1 Are members attending meetings on a regular
basis and if not, is appropriate action taken?

√

1.20 1 Are meetings free and open without political
influences being displayed?

√

1.21 1 Does the authority's S151 officer or deputy attend
all meetings?

√

1.22 1 Does the audit committee have the benefit of
attendance of appropriate officers at its meetings?

√ Attendance records have been reviewed and officers have provided the required
level of support at all meetings.

INTERNAL CONTROL

2.1 1 Does the audit committee consider the findings of
the annual review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control (as required by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations) including the
review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal audit?

√ Internal audit reports are reviewed regularly by the committee.

2.2 1 Does the audit committee have responsibility for
review and approval of the Annual Governance
Statement and does it consider it separately from
the accounts?

√ Draft AGS to come to committee in July 2016 prior to final approval

2.3 1 Does the audit committee consider how
meaningful the Annual Governance Statement is?

√ Standing Agenda item for discussion

P
age 70



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

2.4 1 Does the audit committee satisfy itself that the
system of internal control has operated effectively
throughout the reporting period?

√ The committee receives regular reports from the Head of Audit and Risk
Management

2.5 1 Has the audit committee considered how it
integrates with other committees that may have
responsibility for risk management?

√ The Audit Committee is responsible for receiving risk management reports.

2.6 1 Has the audit committee (with delegated
responsibility) or the full council adopted
"Managing the Risk of Fraud - Actions to Counter
Fraud and Corruption?"

√

Policies updated accordingly
2.7 1 Does the audit committee ensure that the

"Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption" are
being implemented?

√ When it reviews new/updated Counter Fraud Strategy and Whistleblowing
Policy, plus new Audit Plans which do take account of such actions.

2.8 2 Is the audit committee made aware of the role of
risk management in the preparation of the internal
audit plan?

√ This is included in the report when the committee considers the internal audit
plan. 

2.9 2 Does the audit committee review the authority's
strategic risk register at least annually?

√ The Committee receives quarterly risk governance reports and also the
strategic risk register. 

2.10 2 Does the audit committee monitor how the
authority assesses its risk?

√ See 2.9

2.11 2 Do the audit committee's terms of reference
include oversight of the risk management
processes?

√

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS

3.1 1 Is the audit committee's role in the consideration
and/or approval of the annual accounts clearly
defined?

√ Established in the terms of reference.

3.2 1 Does the audit committee consider specifically:
- the suitability of accounting policies and
treatments;
- major judgements made;
- large write-offs;
- changes in accounting treatment;
- the reasonableness of accounting estimates;
- the narrative aspects of reporting?

√ Draft changes agreed in February 2016 for accounting treatment.
Narrative / presentations generally accepted as being understandable. 

3.3 1 Is an audit committee meeting scheduled to
receive the external auditor's report to those
charged with governance including a discussion of
proposed adjustments to the accounts an other
issues arising form the audit?

√ Received each September prior to the final approval of the annual statements of
accounts

P
age 71



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

3.4 1 Does the audit committee review management's
letter of representation?

√ See 3.3

3.5 2 Does the audit committee annually review the
accounting policies of the authority?

√ See 3.3

3.6 2 Does the audit committee gain an understanding
of management's procedures for preparing the
authority's annual accounts?

√ A pre-meeting is held to explain the processes used, and changes to
regulations and policies prior to the committee formally reviewing the
statements of accounts.

3.7 2 Does the audit committee have a mechanism
to keep it aware of topical legal and
regulatory issues, for example by receiving
circulars and through training?

√ Devolution agreement requires specific attention based on Leader
briefings to date.

INTERNAL AUDIT
4.1 1 Does the audit committee approve annually and in

detail, the internal audit strategic and annual
plans including consideration of whether the
scope of internal audit work addresses the
authority's significant risks?

√ Annual Audit planning reports taken to Committee in March each year.

4.2 1 Does internal audit have an appropriate reporting
line to the audit committee?

√ As stated in the Audit Charter.

4.3 1 Does the audit committee receive periodic reports
from the internal audit service including an annual
report from the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Updates on progress against the annual plan and follow up of recommendations
are presented each committee

4.4 1 Are follow-up audits by internal audit monitored by
the audit committee and does the committee
consider the adequacy of implementation of
recommendations?

√ These are covered in the Head of Audit and Risk Management's regular
progress reports to the committee

4.5 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private
discussions with the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Ad-hoc Meetings as necessary

4.6 1 Is there appropriate co-operation between the
internal and external auditors?

√ Joint Working Protocol in place.

4.7 1 Does the audit committee review the adequacy of
internal audit staffing and other resources?

√ See 4.1

4.8 1 Has the audit committee evaluated whether its
internal audit service complies with CIPFA's Code
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government
in the United Kingdom?

√ As part of the Annual Report and Opinion which incorporates the Review of the
Effectiveness of Internal Audit, now against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards

4.9 2 Are internal audit performance measures
monitored by the audit committee?

√ As part of the above report.

4.10 2 Has the audit committee considered the
information it wishes to receive from internal
audit?

√ Established committee reporting cycle with a forward work programme as a
standard agenda item.

P
age 72



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

EXTERNAL AUDIT
5.1 1 Do the external auditors present and discuss their

audit plans and strategy with the audit committee
(recognizing the statutory duties of external
audit)?

√

5.2 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private
discussions with the external auditor?

√ Ad-hoc Meetings as necessary

5.3 1 Does the audit committee review the external
auditor's annual report to those charged with
governance?

√

5.4 1 Does the audit committee ensure that officers are
monitoring action taken to implement external
audit recommendations?

√

5.5 1 Are reports on the work of external audit and other
inspection agencies presented to the committee,
including the Audit Commission's annual audit
and inspection letter?

√

5.6 1 Does the audit committee assess the
performance of external audit?

√ External audit reports regularly to the committee giving members the
opportunity to robustly challenge the performance of external audit.

5.7 1 Does the audit committee consider and approve
the external audit fee?

√

ADMINISTRATION

Agenda administration
6.1 1 Does the audit committee have a designated

secretary from Committee/Member Services?
√

6.2 1 Are agenda papers circulated in advance of
meetings to allow adequate preparation by audit
committee members?

√

6.3 2 Are outline agendas planned one year ahead to
cover issues on a cyclical basis?

√ Established committee reporting cycle with a forward work programme as a
standard agenda item.

6.4 2 Are inputs for Any Other Business formally
requested in advance from committee members,
relevant officers, internal and external audit?

√ There is a standing item on the agenda which receives any Urgent Business

P
age 73



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

Papers
6.5 1 Do reports to the audit committee communicate

relevant information at the right frequency, time,
and in a format that is effective?

√

6.6 2 Does the audit committee issue guidelines and/or
a proforma concerning the format and content of
the papers to be presented?

√

Actions arising
6.7 1 Are minutes prepared and circulated promptly to

the appropriate people?
√

6.8 1 Is a report on matters arising made and minuted
at the audit committee's next meeting?

√

6.9 1 Do action points indicate who is to perform what
and by when?

√

P
age 74



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager Governance – Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 26 May 2016

(Author: Christine Morgan – Democratic Services Officer

Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation: 

That the Committee gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any 
issues for discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meetings for the 2016/17 municipal year.  Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered. 

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the Committee 
in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

Page 75

Agenda Item 10.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a clear, 
structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service

Appendices attached to this report:
 
Appendix A Work Programme for the Governance and Audit Committee 

Page 76



APPENDIX A
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2016/17

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

26 May 2016 External Audit - Progress report External Audit To update Committee on progress.  
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting 
where no full 
report 
provided.

Annual Report (report on the past year)
2015-16

Internal Audit
(Lincolnshire Audit)

Internal audit opinion to support draft 
Annual Governance Statement
Mandatory

Annual

15/16 Un-audited Financial Statement – 
Progress Report

Section 151 Officer Likely out turn and next steps for 
information.  Format to be agreed.

Annual

Local Council Tax Support Scheme – 
information report outlining the levels of 
mandatory and discretionary discounts)

Section 151 Officer Information requested at last meeting. One-off item

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Section 151 Officer For confirmation.
Good practice.

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Tim 
Rogers/Charlotte 
Paine

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

28 July 2016 External Audit - Progress report External Audit To update Committee on progress.  
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

To each 
meeting 
where no full 
report 
provided.

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report (Quarter 1)

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly/To 
each 
meeting.

Annual Treasury Management Review Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy

Annual

P
age 77



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Mandatory

Draft Annual Governance Statement 15-
16

Section 151 Officer Approval
Mandatory

Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Section 151 Officer For confirmation.  
Good practice.

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Tim 
Rogers/Charlotte 
Paine

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

15 September 2016 ISO 260 Report 15/16 (previously know 
as Annual Governance report)

External Audit Mandatory report to those charged 
with Governance

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report (Quarter 2)

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly/To 
each meeting

Approval of Annual Governance 
Statement, for inclusion with the 
Council’s published financial statements, 
and approval of the audited 15/16 
financial statements

Section 151 Officer Mandatory – approval required Annual

Fraud Report 2015-16 Section 151 Officer Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Section 151 Officer For confirmation.  
Good practice.

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Tim 
Rogers/Charlotte 
Paine

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

P
age 78



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

15 December 2016 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2015/16 External Audit Mandatory/Constitutional requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report (Quarter 3)

ELDC Internal Audit Manager to attend 
for Q3 or Q4 report – to be confirmed

Internal Audit
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly/To 
each meeting

Update on the progress of agreed audit 
recommendations and whether 
management have implemented these as 
expected. 

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update on progress of audit 
recommendations.
For information/Good practice

Twice yearly
December 
and 
May/June

Mid Term Treasury Report 16/17 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements.

Half Yearly

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 17/18

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement.
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators.

Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Section 151 Officer For confirmation.  
Good practice.

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Tim 
Rogers/Charlotte 
Paine

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

23 February 2017 Audit Plan External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

P
age 79



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Grant Claims 2015/16 External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report (Quarter 4)

ELDC Internal Audit Manager to attend 
for Q3 or Q4 report – to be confirmed

Internal Audit 
(Eastern Internal 
Audit Services)

To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly/To 
each meeting

Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead)

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval

Annual

Audit Mandatory Inquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory inquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Section 151 Officer For confirmation.  
Good practice.

To each 
meeting

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Tim 
Rogers/Charlotte 
Paine

Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

Item to be added twice yearly to Work Programme in December and May/June (as part of the year end reporting) – Update on the progress 
of agreed audit recommendations and whether management have implemented these as expected.  Report from Internal Audit. 

P
age 80


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	4. External audit progress report and technical update
	External audit progress report and technical update�
	Progress report
	External audit progress report – May 2016
	External audit progress report - May 2016
	External audit progress report - May 2016
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Appendix 1 �Audit deliverables
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19

	6. Un-audited 2015/16 Financial Statement status
	Appendix A Statements of Account 2015.16
	Appendix B 2015.16 Code of Practice
	Appendix C Management Accounts Out turn position 2015.16
	Appendix D  AGS 15-16

	7. Local Council Tax Support Scheme
	Appendix A Council Tax Discounts

	8. Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment
	Copy of Self Assessment Appendix A 26.05.2016

	10. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme


